
Civic Centre, Home Gardens, Dartford, Kent, DA1 1DR 
Tel: 01322 343434 Fax: 01322 343422 Web: www.dartford.gov.uk 

 
 
 

 

Audit Board 
 

 
 

 
 

    
 
 
 
 

A virtual meeting of the above Board will be held at 1.30 p.m. on 

 
Wednesday 22 July 2020 

 
 

 

 
Strategic Director (Internal Services) 

15 July 2020 
 
 

 
 

Councillor D A Hammock (Chairman) 
Councillor Mrs J A Ozog (Vice-Chairman) 

Councillor D Butler-Ruhle 
Councillor R Gosine 

Councillor S N Gosine 
Councillor P M Harman 

Councillor A R Lloyd 
 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page is intentionally left blank 



 

 

AUDIT BOARD 
 

 AGENDA 
 

Wednesday 22 July 2020 
 
 

1. Apologies for Absence   
 

2. Declarations of Interest   
 

 To receive declarations of interest from Members including the 
terms(s) of any Grant(s) of Dispensation from the Strategic 
Director (Internal Services). 
 

 

3. Confirmation of the Minutes of the meeting held on 21 
January 2020  

MD 
(Pages 1 - 10) 

   
 

 

4. Urgent Items   
 

 The Chairman will announce his decision as to whether there are 
any urgent items and their position on the agenda. 
 

 

5. References from Other Committees (IF ANY)   
 

 There are presently no references from other Committees for the 
Board to consider. 
 

 

6. Report from External Auditor   
(Pages 11 - 30) 

 To receive a report from the Council’s External Auditor, Grant 
Thornton UK. 
 

 

7. Fraud Compliance Team Annual Report 2019-20   
(Pages 31 - 36) 

 To receive a report from the Counter Fraud Team Manager and 
comment accordingly. 
 

 

8. Annual Governance Statement (AGS) 2019/20   
(Pages 37 - 60) 

9. Internal Audit Annual Opinion 2019-20   
(Pages 61 - 94) 



 

 To receive a report from the Internal Audit Manager and 
comment accordingly. 
 

 

10. Internal Audit Plan 2020-21   
(Pages 95 - 

110) 

 To note the report and 2020-21 Plan and comment accordingly. 
 

 

11. Internal Audit Charter   
(Pages 111 - 

120) 

12. Internal Audit External Quality Assessment   
(Pages 121 - 

128) 

13. Selective Invoice Checks   
(Pages 129 - 

132) 

 During the 21 January meeting of the Board, Members selected 
five payments for checking. This report summarises the findings 
of that exercise. 
 
  
 

 

14. Member Code of Conduct: Adoption of the International 
Holocaust Remembrance Alliance Definition of Anti-
Semitism  

 
(Pages 133 - 

138) 

 That the Audit Board endorse the proposed amendment to the 
Member Code of Conduct as set of in the report from the 
Council’s Head of Legal Services, originally to be considered by 
Members in April 2020. 
 

 

 



 

1 

DARTFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT BOARD 
 

MINUTES of the meeting of the Audit Board held on Wednesday 22 January 2020 at 
7.00 pm. 
 

 
PRESENT: 
 

Councillor D A Hammock (Chairman) 
Councillor Mrs J A Ozog (Vice-Chairman) 
Councillor S N Gosine 
Councillor P M Harman 
Councillor A R Lloyd 
 

 
ABSENT: 
 

Councillor D Butler-Ruhle 
Councillor R Gosine 
 

 
IN ATTENDANCE: Sarah Martin – Strategic Director (Internal Services) 
 Tim Sams – Financial Services Manager 
 Frankie Smith  – Lead Auditor (Chief Audit Executive) 
 Jo Herrington – Lead Auditor 
 Ajiab Benning – Auditor 
 Russell 

Heppleston 
– Deputy Head of Audit Partnership, 

Mid Kent Audit 
 

 
26. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE.  

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Butler-Rhule and Mrs 
R Gosine and Mrs Liz Jackson Grant Thornton UK (External Auditors). 
 
The Chairman gave a special welcome to Russell Heppleston, Deputy Head 
of Audit Partnership, Mid Kent Audit, who was attending the Board in a guest 
capacity to present his final reports to Members, following the conclusion of 
his secondment to the Council as Internal Audit Manager (Chief Audit 
Executive) earlier in January.  
 
The Chairman also noted and welcomed the presence of the Strategic 
Director (Internal Services), the Financial Services Manager, the newly 
appointed Lead Auditors, and the Audit Officer. 
 
 

27. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST.  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

28. CONFIRMATION OF THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 23 
OCTOBER 2019  
 
  RESOLVED: 
 

Page 1 Agenda Item 3



AUDIT BOARD 
 

WEDNESDAY 22 JANUARY 2020 
 
 

2 

1. That the Minutes of the Board meeting held on 23 October 2019 be 
confirmed as accurate. 

 
29. URGENT ITEMS  

 
The Chairman confirmed that there were no urgent items of business for the 
Board to consider. 
 

30. REFERENCES FROM OTHER COMMITTEES (IF ANY)  
 
There were no references from other Committees for the Board to consider. 
 

31. MEMBER DEVELOPMENT TRAINING - RISK MANAGEMENT  
 
As agreed by Members on 17 July 2019 [Min. No 13 refers], the Board 
received a final briefing from Russell Heppleston (Mid Kent Audit) in his 
former role as the Council’s Internal Audit Manager, on the subject of ‘Risk 
Management’.  
 
Principal areas covered in the briefing were: 
 

 Introduction and Terminology 

 The Risk Process 

 Risk Issues 

 The future 
 
Introduction & Terminology 
 
Members were advised that the briefing dealt with risk in the business sense 
(rather than health & safety) and could usefully be defined as ‘An uncertain 
event that, if it occurred, had an effect on an objective’.  
 
Risk was directly related to all Council objectives, as set out in its published 
policy documents e.g. the Corporate Plan, Key Actions and Performance 
Indicators document, which were subject to regular monitoring reports - such 
as the Internal Audit Update report to the Board. The assessment of risk 
concentrated on three main areas: 
 

 Future focussed; 

 Had a degree of uncertainty [when it occurred]; 

 Would impact on the achievement of objectives (positively* or 
negatively). 

 
 * An example of positive risk was an opportunity, which if taken, could 
lead to a substantial reward for the authority in terms of revenue or 
services 

 
Risk was measured in terms of likelihood and impact, and assessed in a 
matrix format underpinned by Risk Registers (the Risk Evaluation process). In 

Page 2Agenda Item 3



AUDIT BOARD 
 

WEDNESDAY 22 JANUARY 2020 
 
 

3 

this context, ‘reputational risk’ [suffered by a local authority through a failed 
initiative/process] was viewed as an ‘impact’ rather than a ‘risk’.  
 
Risk Management 
 
This was the process by which the Council identified, quantified and 
managed the risks it faced as it sought to achieve its objectives, and was a 
pillar of good governance, and as such, fell within the remit of the Audit Board 
as outlined in the Board’s Terms of Reference (ToRs), specifically para 20:   
 

 ‘To approve the Council’s risk management framework* and oversee 
its application’. 

 
The Framework was defined as all measures used by the Council to capture, 
quantify and manage risk, and the Audit Board held a key role in approving its 
terms, and implementation by the Senior Management Team and all Council 
Officers.  
 
Terminology 
 
Commonly used terms employed to define risk and to describe associated 
work processes included: 
 

 Risk Universe: All that could realistically occur – proportionality was 
vital in making these assessments in terms of the Council’s activities, 
to ensure that any potential risks identified added value to the Council’s 
risk management framework; 

 Risk Appetite: Level of risk the Council is willing to seek in order to 
achieve its Objectives, as captured in its Risk Register; 

 Risk Tolerance: Maximum level of risk that the Council will allow 
below the level of its maximum level of risk appetite (see above); 

 Impact: How severely the Council would be affected if a risk was to 
materialise (including to its reputation); 

 Likelihood: Consideration of how likely it was that a risk would occur – 
this was a matter of judgement, allied to objectivity. 

 
Risk Management Process 
 
Members were advised that this was a circulatory process, used across the 
Dartford & Sevenoaks Audit Partnership, which began with [the Council] 
identifying Objectives for all areas of policy and operation e.g. Corporate 
Objectives , Strategic Plan etc. followed by a sequential process of: 
 

 Risk Identification; 

 Risk Evaluation; 

 Risk Response & Action; and 

 Monitoring & Reporting 
 

Page 3 Agenda Item 3



AUDIT BOARD 
 

WEDNESDAY 22 JANUARY 2020 
 
 

4 

Tools required to achieve a successful risk management process were a risk 
management framework document, underpinned by regular guidance and 
training of responsible officers and Members. 
 
Risk Evaluation 
 
Members were shown the Risk Evaluation matrix used by the Council The 
matrix was calibrated from 1 (low risk) to 5 (high risk) to give greater depth 
and shade to the assessment process. The matrix was colour coded to signify 
the degree of risk; blue for levels 1 and 2 (low), green for levels 3 and 4 
(medium) and orange for level 5 (medium high). The upper quartile of the 
matrix above the ‘tolerance level’, was shaded progressively red and black to 
signify unacceptably high risk.  
 
Risks were assessed for impact and likelihood, and plotted on the matrix 
accordingly. This enabled Officers to identify those risks which fell above the 
Council’s tolerance level, and to monitor their movement over time, as 
Officers took action to effectively address them. The matrix provided a ‘snap 
shot’ of the current level of an identified risk at a given time, acting as a ‘front 
cover’ to the relevant strategic or operational risk register associated with the 
area of Council operation. 
 
Risk Impact 
 
Members were shown a Risk Impact table which covered the Council’s 
operations in the key areas of Finance, Service Delivery & Capability, 
Reputation, Legal & Regulatory and People & Culture. The table was graded 
1 (minimal impact) to 5 (Critical impact) as defined for each key area 
respectively, in terms of financial loss; service delivery failure/loss; harm to 
public confidence or embarrassment [to the Council]; breaches of law, rules or 
governance; negative impact on workforce, culture or values.  
 
In assessing the impact of risk, Members were advised of the need for 
Officers to avoid a ‘group think’ approach, which concentrated purely on the 
financial impact of risk, and neglected the wider aspects of risk to the 
Council’s operation as detailed above. 
 
Risk Levels 
 
Members were advised of the three risk categories which affected the Council 
operations: 
 

 Strategic (Corporate) Risk– by definition these risks were inherently 
more strategic in nature and carried a higher level of impact; 

 Operational Risk – these risks were more directly linked with the day 
to day operation of services and were captured as part of the service 
planning process; 

 Emerging Risk – risks that were on the horizon but too uncertain to 
quantify or define…risks on the radar. 

Page 4Agenda Item 3



AUDIT BOARD 
 

WEDNESDAY 22 JANUARY 2020 
 
 

5 

 
The Risk Radar 
 
Members were given an analogy for future risk of a radar screen, formed of 
three concentric circles, illustrating the estimated major risk factors from 
2019/20 and the following two financial years to 2021 and beyond.  
 
In the current 2019/20 financial cycle, major risk factors were the Impact of 
Brexit (ongoing), Business Rate Retention and Political Change, with the latter 
also affecting the 2020/21 financial cycle, together with Regeneration Projects 
e.g. the continuing HS2 saga. Risk factors for the longer term included; Aging 
Population/Workforce, Legislation Changes, Infrastructure and Advancing 
Technologies. 
 
Tools available to local authorities to anticipate and prepare for future risk 
factors included: 
 

 Horizon Scanning 

 Risk Workshops 

 Intelligence gathering 

 Research 

 Publications 

 Professional papers 
 
Kent Local Government Picture 
 
Members were advised that the most common themes of risk amongst Kent 
authorities were: 
 

 Cyber / ICT Security 

 Financial Resilience / Uncertainty 

 Capacity & Resources 
 
Most large organisations, including local authorities, identified their ‘Top Ten’ 
risks and managed their resources downwards to address them.  
 
Risk Assurance 
 
The Dartford & Sevenoaks Audit Partnership provided risk-based assurance 
to the Council via six key documents: 
 

 The Annual Internal Audit Plan (March) 

 The Annual Internal Audit Opinion (July) 

 Quarterly Internal Audit Updates (January, March, July, October) 
 
The Council’s External Auditor Grant Thornton UK also provided risk 
assurance via its quarterly update reports to the Audit Board, which contained 
a Value for Money (VfM) Opinion element. 
 

Page 5 Agenda Item 3



AUDIT BOARD 
 

WEDNESDAY 22 JANUARY 2020 
 
 

6 

Further risk assurance was provided by the Council’s Governance Group, 
comprising the Managing Director, the Strategic Director (Internal Services) 
and Section 151 Officer and the Financial Services Manager. The Council 
also maintained Strategic and Operational Risk Registers and held monthly 
Managers meetings the outcomes of which were reported to the Senior 
Management Team, as part of the Council’s Assurance Framework, agreed 
by the Audit Board on an annual basis.  
 
Future Developments  
 
The recruitment of a new Internal Audit Manager (Chief Audit Executive) to 
replace Russell Heppleston was a priority for the Partnership, with interviews 
for the position due to be held in early February. In the interim, Frankie Smith 
would assume the role of Interim Audit Manager and oversee the following 
proposed work activity for the ensuing 2020/21 financial year: 
 
Quarter 1 – Review of Risk Framework 
Quarter 2 – Update Risk Registers 
Quarter 3 – Strategic Risk Refresh 
Quarter 4 – Update to Audit Board   
 
The Chairman thanked the former IAM for a very comprehensive and useful 
presentation and noted. 
 
  RESOLVED: 
 

1. That Members note the contents of the briefing on Risk Management; 
2. That Members receive a further tranche of training in March 2020 from 

the Financial Services Manager on the topic of ‘Government Finance’ 
[Min No 13 refers]. 

 
32. REPORT FROM THE EXTERNAL AUDITOR  

 
The Chairman confirmed that all Members had received a copy of the 
External Auditor’s report (marked as ‘To-Follow’ in the main agenda papers), 
circulated subsequently as Appendix A to the covering report from the 
Financial Services Manager (FSM). 
 
In the absence of any representatives from the Grant Thornton UK, the FSM 
summarised the External Auditor’s report for Members which comprised two 
parts: 
 

 Appendix A – Audit Progress Report & Sector Update 

 Appendix B – Assurance Letter to the Audit Board Chairman 
 
Members were advised that Appendix A comprised the usual update on the 
progress being made by the External Auditor with the Council’s Finance 
Department, with further work due in January and March to complete the 
2019/20 Deliverables (as summarised on pages 4/5 of the report). The report 

Page 6Agenda Item 3



AUDIT BOARD 
 

WEDNESDAY 22 JANUARY 2020 
 
 

7 

also contained a summary of the Redmond Review [September – December 
2019] which would be covered in detail by the Strategic Director. 
 
The FSM confirmed that he would be drafting the customary stock letter for 
the Chairman, in response to the External Auditor’s letter at Appendix B, and 
noted the Chairman’s request that the final letter be copied to all Audit Board 
Members for information. 
 
Members were then briefed by the Strategic Director (Internal Services) on 
the implications for the Council of the Redmond Review, launched by the 
Government on 17 September 2019, under the leadership of Sir Tony 
Redmond (former President of CIPFA), and closed in December 2019 with a 
report due to be submitted to the Secretary of State in Summer 2020. 
 
The Review had been commissioned by the Government following adverse 
publicity over the performance of Grant Thornton and Ernst Young 
accountancy firms, including their auditing of local authority accounts, of 
which only 65% across Kent had been completed by Grant Thornton by the 
sign-off deadline. In the case of Dartford Council, only 58% of the agreed 
accountancy work had been completed by Grant Thornton in 2018/19 to 
deadline, due in the main, to complex technical issues involved in the 
accounts process.  
 
A significant outcome of the Review was likely to be the recommendation to 
appoint an External Regulatory body, to monitor the performance of external 
auditors, last undertaken by the Audit Commission up to 2010. A specific 
financial outcome for the Council, was a likely increase in External Auditor 
Fees, arising from recommended changes to the scope and emphasis of the 
work to be undertaken by external auditors in the future. At present, the 
emphasis was backward looking, rather than concentrating on the Value for 
Money (VfM) Conclusion, and increased checks on the pension funds and 
assets held by local authorities. 
 
In response to specific questions from Members the Strategic Director 
confirmed that: 

 Grant Thornton only had a few audit teams operating in Kent as a 
whole; 

 GT would be concentrating on their NHS audit work first because of the 
deadlines involved;  

 GT’s audit team for Dartford had only comprised two auditors in 
2018/19 and been subject to changes in personnel during the audit 
period. This had led to a disjointed performance and proved disruptive 
for the Council’s Finance team in terms of continuity and GT’s retained 
historical knowledge of the Council’s accounts and practices.  

 
 

RESOLVED: 
 

Page 7 Agenda Item 3



AUDIT BOARD 
 

WEDNESDAY 22 JANUARY 2020 
 
 

8 

1. That note update report from the External Auditor, Grant Thornton, 
attached at Appendix A to the covering report from the Financial 
Services Manager; 

2. That Members note the letter from Grant Thornton attached at 
Appendix B to the report; 

3. That the Chairman’s letter of response to Appendix B to copied to all 
Audit Board Members.  

 
33. INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE REPORT (JANUARY 2020)  

 
The report from the former Internal Audit Manager (Chief Audit Executive) 
provided Members with a snapshot of activity undertaken and progress made 
in the Quarter 3 of the current 2019/20 financial year.  
 
Members were advised that, following a restructure of the audit service, a 
period of recruitment and induction, progress of deployed Audit Days for the 
year [table agenda p.17] was lower than anticipated. However, the Internal 
Audit team was now up to strength, from a low of only 2 auditors for the first 
three quarters of the 2019/20 F.Y. to a full complement of 6 auditors. The time 
investment in 3 new staff members had inevitably led to a ‘spike’ in non-
chargeable days, but it was expected to reverse this trend with a fully 
complimented team in the final Quarter of 2019/20 and the 1st Quarter of 
2020/21. 
 
To this end, the Board were asked to approve the Projects for the 1st Quarter 
of the 2020/21 Audit Plan now (spreadsheet - agenda p.20) for staff planning 
and resource purposes, in anticipation of the 2020/21 Audit Plan being 
formally presented to the Board on 22 April 2020 by Frankie Smith, in her role 
as Lead Auditor (Chief Audit Executive). Members were also asked to note 
two Agreed Deferrals for audit action (agenda p.28). The second deferred 
audit action to address the backlog on inspections for new premises food 
inspections, would be addressed and taken forward by the new IA Manager 
on his/her appointment. The new IA Manager would also be responsible for 
the early scoping work required for completion of the Council’s External 
Quality Assessment (EQA) due to be presented to the Board in November 
2020 (Service Update summary - agenda p.30 refers).   
 
In response to a specific question from the Cabinet Portfolio Holder for 
Finance (attending in his Board capacity), the Strategic Director (Internal 
Services) confirmed that the risks associated with the activities of the 
Council’s Treasury Management Panel in investing the Council’s funds, were 
examined by the External Auditors as part of Grant Thornton’s Value for 
Money (VfM) Conclusion exercise. 
 

RESOLVED: 
 

1. That Members note the Internal Audit Progress Report and updates 
attached as Appendix A to the report; 

2. That Members agree the projects for Quarter 1 of the 2020/21 financial 
year as set out in Appendix A. 

Page 8Agenda Item 3



AUDIT BOARD 
 

WEDNESDAY 22 JANUARY 2020 
 
 

9 

 
34. SELECTIVE INVOICE CHECKS  

 
 
Following the October meeting of the Board, the Chairman selected five 
creditor payments for checking. The report summarised the findings of that 
exercise and provided Members the opportunity to select five further 
payments for checking. 
 
Paragraph 3.3. of the report advised Members of the new approach that had 
been adopted for the selection of payments from October 2019 whereby, a list 
of all payments made in the previous Quarter was supplied to Members for 
examination and selection, rather than by a single letter of the alphabet. This 
ensured that transactions tested were current.   
 
  RESOLVED: 
 

1. That Members note the contents of the report and request any further 
explanations as required; 

2. That Members select five further payments for checking by Internal 
Audit; 

3. That the new Internal Audit ‘Selective Invoice Checks’ explanation 
sheet, provided to all Managers, be copied to all Members of the 
Council for their information. 

 
35. CHAIRMAN'S THANKS  

 
The Chairman took the opportunity to express his profound thanks to Russell 
Heppleston, for the significant transformation he had effected to the running of 
the Council’s Internal Audit team, in his role as Internal Audit Manager (Chief 
Audit Executive), during his secondment from Mid Kent Audit from October 
2018 to January 2020. 
 
 All Board Members and the Strategic Director (Internal Services) joined the 
Chairman in a vote of thanks and appreciation. 
 
 
 

The meeting closed at 8.20 pm 
 
  

 
 

Councillor D A Hammock 
CHAIRMAN 

Page 9 Agenda Item 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



                 

AUDIT BOARD 
22nd July 2020 

 
 
REPORT FROM THE EXTERNAL AUDITOR 
 

 
1.      Summary 

 
To present to the Board the external auditor’s 2019/20 Audit Plan. 

 
2.  RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 That Members note the Audit Plan for 2019/20. 
 
 

 
3. Background and Discussion   

 
3.1 Due to the Covid 19 virus outbreak the deadlines for submission and audit of 

the statement of accounts have been changed so that the new statutory date 
for publication for the final, audited 2019/20 Financial Statement is 30 
November 2020, a change from the 31 July 2020. The formal 10 working day 
public inspection period must start by 1 September 2020. The Council will be 
required to publish the date of their inspection period this year. 
 

3.2 Given this, rather than updating the Council on their work auditing the 
Statement of Accounts at this meeting, it is necessary to for Grant Thornton to 
submit their Audit Plan to the Board. This was not possible to earlier due to the 
cancelled April meeting. 

 
3.3 It is expected that the Statement of Accounts will be published, audited and 

ready for approval well within the extended timescales. 
 
3.4 A Member of the Grant Thornton audit team will present the report to the 
 Board and give an update on audit progress. 
 
 
4. Relationship to the Corporate Plan 
 
 Not applicable 

 
5. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 

assessments 
 

Financial Implications None 

Legal Implications None 

Staffing Implications None 

Administrative Implications None 

Page 11 Agenda Item 6



                 

AUDIT BOARD 
22nd July 2020 

 
 

  

Risk Assessment None 

 
 
6. Appendices 

 
Appendix A – Grant Thornton – Audit Plan for 2019/20. 
 

 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
Documents 
consulted 
 
 

 File Ref Report  
Author 

Section and 
Directorate 

Exempt 
Information 
Category 

   Tim Sams 
343148 

Internal 
Services/ 
Financial 
Services 

N/A 

      

 
 
 

Page 12Agenda Item 6



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Dartford Borough Council   |  2019/20

External Audit Plan
Year ending 31 March 2020

Dartford Borough Council

July 2020

P
age 13

A
genda Item

 6



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Dartford Borough Council   |  2019/20 2

Contents

Section Page

1. Introduction & headlines 3

2. Key matters impacting our audit 4

3. Significant risks identified 5

4. Other matters 8

5. Materiality 9

6. Value for Money arrangements 10

7. Audit logistics & team 11

8. Audit fees 12

9. Independence & non-audit services 14

Appendix

A. Audit quality – national context

The contents of this report relate only to the matters which have come to our attention, which we believe need to be reported to you as part of our audit planning process. It is not a
comprehensive record of all the relevant matters, which may be subject to change, and in particular we cannot be held responsible to you for reporting all of the risks which may affect the
Authority or all weaknesses in your internal controls. This report has been prepared solely for your benefit and should not be quoted in whole or in part without our prior written consent.
We do not accept any responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the basis of the content of this report, as this report was not prepared for,
nor intended for, any other purpose.

Your key Grant Thornton 
team members are:

Iain Murray

Engagement Lead

T:  020 7728 3329

E: iain.g.murray@uk.gt.com

Keith Mungadzi

Engagement Manager

T: 020 7728 2393

E: keith.mungadzi@uk.gt.com

Ezgi Aslan

Audit In-charge

T: 020 7184 4309

E: ezgi.aslan@uk.gt.com

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. Registered office: 30 Finsbury Square, London, EC2A 1AG. A list of members 
is available from our registered office.  Grant Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant 
Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL and its member firms are not agents 
of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.

P
age 14

A
genda Item

 6



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Dartford Borough Council   |  2019/20 3

1. Introduction & headlines
Purpose

This document provides an overview of the planned scope and timing of the statutory
audit of Dartford Borough Council (‘the Authority’) for those charged with governance.

Respective responsibilities

The National Audit Office (‘the NAO’) has issued a document entitled Code of Audit
Practice (‘the Code’). This summarises where the responsibilities of auditors begin
and end and what is expected from the audited body. Our respective responsibilities
are also set out in the Terms of Appointment and Statement of Responsibilities
issued by Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA), the body responsible for
appointing us as auditor of [insert name of organisation. We draw your attention to
both of these documents on the PSAA website.

Scope of our audit

The scope of our audit is set in accordance with the Code and International Standards on
Auditing (ISAs) (UK). We are responsible for forming and expressing an opinion on the :

• Authority’s financial statements that have been prepared by management with the
oversight of those charged with governance (the Audit and Governance committee); and

• Value for Money arrangements in place at the Authority for securing economy, efficiency
and effectiveness in your use of resources.

The audit of the financial statements does not relieve management or the Audit and
Governance Committee of your responsibilities. It is the responsibility of the Authority to
ensure that proper arrangements are in place for the conduct of its business, and that public
money is safeguarded and properly accounted for. We have considered how the Authority is
fulfilling these responsibilities.

Our audit approach is based on a thorough understanding of the Authority's business and is
risk based.

Significant risks Those risks requiring special audit consideration and procedures to address the likelihood of a material financial statement error have been identified as:

• Management override of controls

• Valuation of land and buildings

• Valuation of net pension fund liability

• COVID-19 Financial Statement level risk

We will communicate significant findings on these areas as well as any other significant matters arising from the audit to you in our Audit Findings (ISA 260) 
Report.

Materiality We have determined planning materiality to be £1.3m for the Authority, which equates to 2% of your prior gross expenditure for the year. We are obliged to 
report uncorrected omissions or misstatements other than those which are ‘clearly trivial’ to those charged with governance. Clearly trivial has been set at £65k 
(PY £63k). 

Value for Money 
arrangements

Our risk assessment regarding your arrangements to secure value for money have identified the following VFM significant risks:

• Financial Sustainability

Audit logistics Our interim visit will take place in March 2020 and our final visit will take place in  July and August 2020.  Our key deliverables are this Audit Plan and our Audit 
Findings Report. Our audit approach is detailed in Appendix A.

Our fee for the audit will be £43,242 (PY: £35,732) for the Authority, subject to the Authority meeting our requirements set out on page 12

Independence We have complied with the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard and we as a firm, and each covered person, confirm that we are independent and are 
able to express an objective opinion on the financial statements..

P
age 15

A
genda Item

 6



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Dartford Borough Council   |  2019/20 4

2. Key matters impacting our audit
Factors

Our response

.

The wider economy and political uncertainty

Local Government funding continues to be stretched with 
increasing cost pressures and  demand from residents and 
uncertainty of future funding, the impact of COVID-19. For 
Dartford Borough Council, you set a balanced budget for the 
2019/20 financial period. You have increased share of council tax 
by 3% as part of your Medium Term Financial Strategy, which is 
the limit set for authorities before the requirement of a local 
referendum on council tax increases. Moving forward will 
maintain a freeze in the years 2020/21 to 2023/24.

As part of the response to the COVID-19 pandemic, the 
government announced £1.6bn in additional funding to Local 
Authorities  to address the pressures of the pandemic. The 
government announced changes to the business rates that mean 
qualifying businesses will not pay business rates for 2020/21 and  
Local Authorities will be compensated for the associated loss of 
income and for the provision of appropriate new burdens funding 
to cover the administrative costs of implementation.

The government continues its negotiation with the EU over Brexit, 
and future arrangements remain clouded in uncertainty. The 
Authority will need to ensure that it is prepared for all outcomes, 
including in terms of any impact on contracts, on service delivery 
and on its support for local people and businesses. 

• We will consider your arrangements for managing and 
reporting your financial resources as part of our work in 
reaching our Value for Money conclusion.

• We will consider whether your financial position leads to 
material uncertainty about the going concern of the council 
and will review related disclosures in the financial statements. 

Financial reporting and audit – raising 
the bar 

The Financial Reporting Council (FRC) has 
set out its expectation of improved financial 
reporting from organisations and the need 
for auditors to demonstrate increased 
scepticism and challenge, and to undertake 
more robust testing as detailed in Appendix 
1.  

Our work in 2018/19 has highlighted areas 
where local government financial reporting, 
in particular, property, plant and equipment 
and pensions, needs to be improved, with a 
corresponding increase in audit 
procedures. We have also identified an 
increase in the complexity of local 
government financial transactions which 
require greater audit scrutiny.

Local Government Timetable

The new date for  publication for the final, audited 2019/20 
Financial Statement is 30 November 2020, a change from the 31 
July 2020. The formal 10 working day public inspection period 
must start by 1 September 2020. The Council will be required to 
publish the date of their inspection period this year. 

Implementation of IFRS 16 – Leases

The Public Sector was due to implement the IFRS 16 standard 
from 1 April 2020 (replacing IAS17 leases). The implementation 
of IFRS 16 has now been delayed to 1 April 2021 due to COVID-
19, however, the Council will still be required to include 
disclosures in the 2019/2020 financial statements on the 
expected impact of the standard in accordance with requirement 
of IAS 8.

Covid 19 

The global outbreak of the Covid-19 virus pandemic has led to 
unprecedented uncertainty for all organisations, requiring urgent 
business continuity arrangements to be implemented. We expect 
current circumstances will have an impact on the production and 
audit of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 
2020.

 As a firm, we are absolutely committed 
to meeting the expectations of the FRC 
with regard to audit quality and local 
government financial reporting. Our 
proposed work and fee, as set further in 
our Audi Plan, subject to agreement 
with the Director of Finance and PSAA 
agreement. 

• We will assess the adequacy of your disclosure about the 
financial impact of IFRS16 in line with IAS8

• Consider the impact of COVID-19 as part of our financial 
statement audit and value for money conclusion.

P
age 16

A
genda Item

 6



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Dartford Borough Council   |  2019/20 5

3. Significant risks identified
Significant risks are defined by ISAs (UK) as risks that, in the judgement of the auditor, require special audit consideration. In identifying risks, audit teams consider the nature of the risk, 
the potential magnitude of misstatement, and its likelihood. Significant risks are those risks that have a higher risk of material misstatement.

Risk Reason for risk identification Key aspects of our proposed response to the risk

The revenue cycle includes 
fraudulent transactions 

Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a rebuttable presumed risk that revenue may be
misstated due to the improper recognition of revenue.
This presumption can be rebutted if the auditor concludes that there is no risk of 
material misstatement due to fraud relating to revenue recognition.

Having considered the risk factors set out in ISA240 and the nature of the 
revenue streams at the Authority, we have determined that the risk of fraud 
arising from revenue recognition can be rebutted, because:

• there is little incentive to manipulate revenue recognition

• opportunities to manipulate revenue recognition are very limited

• the culture and ethical frameworks of local authorities, including Dartford 
District Council mean that all forms of fraud are seen as unacceptable

Therefore we do not consider this to be a significant risk for 
Dartford Borough Council.

Management over-ride of controls Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a non-rebuttable presumed risk that the risk of 
management over-ride of controls is present in all entities. The Authority faces 
external scrutiny of its spending and this could potentially place management 
under undue pressure in terms of how they report performance.

We therefore identified management override of control, in particular journals, 
management estimates and transactions outside the course of business as a 
significant risk, which was one of the most significant assessed risks of material 
misstatement.

We will:

• evaluate the design effectiveness of management 
controls over journals

• analyse the journals listing and determine the criteria for 
selecting high risk unusual journals 

• test unusual journals recorded during the year and after 
the draft accounts stage for appropriateness and 
corroboration

• gain an understanding of the accounting estimates and 
critical  judgements applied made by management and 
consider their reasonableness with regard to 
corroborative evidence

• evaluate the rationale for any changes in accounting 
policies, estimates or significant unusual transactions.

P
age 17

A
genda Item

 6



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Dartford Borough Council   |  2019/20 6

Risk Reason for risk identification Key aspects of our proposed response to the risk

Valuation of 
land and 
buildings

The Authority revalues its land and buildings on a 
rolling five-yearly basis. This valuation represents a 
significant estimate by management in the financial 
statements due to the size of the numbers involved 
and the sensitivity of this estimate to changes in key 
assumptions. Additionally, management will need to 
ensure the carrying value in the Authority financial 
statements is not materially different from the current 
value or the fair value (for investment properties) at 
the financial statements date, where a rolling 
programme is used.

We therefore identified valuation of land and
buildings, particularly revaluations and impairments,
as a significant risk, which was one of the most
significant assessed risks of material misstatement.

We will:

• evaluate management's processes and assumptions for the calculation of the estimate, the instructions
issued to valuation experts and the scope of their work

• evaluate the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the valuation expert

• write to the valuer to confirm the basis on which the valuation was carried out

• challenge the information and assumptions used by the valuer to assess completeness and consistency
with our understanding, the Authority’s valuer’s report and the assumptions that underpin the valuation.

• test revaluations made during the year to see if they had been input correctly into the Authority's asset
register

• evaluating the assumptions made by management for those assets not revalued during the year and how 
management has satisfied themselves that these are not materially different to current value at year end

Valuation of 
the pension 
fund net 
liability

The Authority's pension fund net liability,
as reflected in its balance sheet as the net defined 
benefit liability, represents a significant estimate in 
the financial statement accounts. 

The pension fund net liability is considered a 
significant estimate due to the size of the numbers 
involved (£54,835k in the Authority’s balance sheet) 
and the sensitivity of the estimate to changes in key 
assumptions.

We therefore identified valuation of the Authority’s 
pension fund net liability as a significant risk, which 
was one of the most significant assessed risks of 
material misstatement.

We will:

• update our understanding of the processes and controls put in place by management to ensure that the 
Authority’s pension fund net liability is not materially misstated and evaluate the design of the associated 
controls;

• evaluate the instructions issued by management  to their management expert (an actuary) for this estimate 
and the scope of the actuary’s work;

• assess the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the actuary who carried out the Authority’s pension 
fund valuation; 

• assess the accuracy and completeness of the information provided by the Authority to the actuary to 
estimate the liability;

• test the consistency of the pension fund asset and liability and disclosures in the notes to the core financial 
statements with the actuarial report from the actuary;

• undertake procedures to confirm the reasonableness of the actuarial assumptions made by reviewing the 
report of the consulting actuary (as auditor’s expert) and performing any additional procedures suggested 
within the report; and

• obtain assurances from the auditor of Kent County Council Pension Fund as to the controls surrounding 
the validity and accuracy of membership data; contributions data and benefits data sent to the actuary by 
the pension fund and the fund assets valuation in the pension fund financial statements.

4. Significant risks identified (continued)

P
age 18

A
genda Item

 6



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Dartford Borough Council   |  2019/20 7

Risk Reason for risk identification Key aspects of our proposed response to the risk

Covid 19 The global outbreak of the Covid-19 virus pandemic has led to 
unprecedented uncertainty for all organisations, requiring urgent 
business continuity arrangements to be implemented. We expect current 
circumstances will have an impact on the production and audit of the 
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020, including and not 
limited to;

• Remote working arrangements and redeployment of staff to critical 
front line duties may impact on the quality and timing of the production 
of the financial statements, and the evidence we can obtain through 
physical observation

• Volatility of financial and property markets will increase the 
uncertainty of assumptions applied by management to asset 
valuation, and the reliability of evidence we can obtain to corroborate 
management estimates

• Financial uncertainty will require management to reconsider financial 
forecasts supporting their going concern assessment and whether 
material uncertainties for a period of at least 12 months from the 
anticipated date of approval of the audited financial statements have 
arisen; and 

• Disclosures within the financial statements will require significant 
revision to reflect the unprecedented situation and its impact on the 
preparation of the financial statements as at 31 March 2020 in 
accordance with IAS1, particularly in relation to material uncertainties.

We therefore identified the global outbreak of the Covid-19 virus as a 
significant risk, which was one of the most significant assessed risks of 
material misstatement.

We will:

• Work with management to understand the implications the response to the Covid-19 
pandemic has on the organisation’s ability to prepare the financial statements and 
update financial forecasts and assess the implications on our audit approach

• Liaise with other audit suppliers, regulators and government departments to co-
ordinate practical cross sector responses to issues as and when they arise 

• Evaluate the adequacy of the disclosures in the financial statements  in light of the 
Covid-19 pandemic. 

• Evaluate whether sufficient audit evidence using alternative approaches can be 
obtained for the purposes of our audit whilst working remotely

• Evaluate whether sufficient audit evidence can be obtained to corroborate 
management’s estimates such as asset valuations and recovery of receivable balances

• Evaluate whether sufficient audit evidence can be obtained to corroborate significant 
management estimates such as Level 3 asset valuations, 

• Evaluate management’s assumptions that underpin the revised financial forecasts and 
the impact on management’s going concern assessment

• Discuss with management any potential implications for our audit report if we have 
been unable to obtain sufficient audit evidence

5 Significant risks identified (continued)

We will communicate significant findings on these areas as well as any other significant matters arising from the audit to you in our Audit Findings Report.

P
age 19

A
genda Item

 6



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Dartford Borough Council   |  2019/20 8

6. Other matters

Other work

In addition to our responsibilities under the Code of Practice, we have a number of other
audit responsibilities, as follows:

• We read your Narrative Report and Annual Governance Statement and any other 
information published alongside your financial statements to check that they are 
consistent with the financial statements on which we give an opinion and consistent 
with our knowledge of the Authority

• We carry out work to satisfy ourselves that disclosures made in your Annual 
Governance Statement are in line with the guidance issued by CIPFA

• We carry out work on your consolidation schedules for the Whole of Government 
Accounts process in accordance with NAO group audit instructions

• We consider our other duties under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (the 
Act) and the Code, as and when required, including:

• Giving electors the opportunity to raise questions about your 2019/20 
financial statements, consider and decide upon any objections received in 
relation to the 2019/20 financial statements

• Issue of a report in the public interest or written recommendations to the 
Authority under section 24 of the Act, copied to the Secretary of State

• Application to the court for a declaration that an item of account is contrary 
to law under Section 28 or for a judicial review under Section 31 of the Act 
or

• Issuing an advisory notice under Section 29 of the Act.

• We certify completion of our audit.

Other material balances and transactions

Under International Standards on Auditing, "irrespective of the assessed risks of material 
misstatement, the auditor shall design and perform substantive procedures for each 
material class of transactions, account balance and disclosure". All other material 
balances and transaction streams will therefore be audited. However, the procedures will 
not be as extensive as the procedures adopted for the risks identified in this report.

Going concern

As auditors, we are required to “obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about the 
appropriateness of management's use of the going concern assumption in the 
preparation and presentation of the financial statements and to conclude whether there is 
a material uncertainty about the council's ability to continue as a going concern” (ISA 
(UK) 570). We will review management's assessment of the going concern assumption 
and material uncertainties, and evaluate the disclosures in the financial statements. 

P
age 20

A
genda Item

 6



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Dartford Borough Council   |  2019/20 9

7. Materiality
The concept of materiality

The concept of materiality is fundamental to the preparation of the financial statements and the 
audit process and applies not only to the monetary misstatements but also to disclosure 
requirements and adherence to acceptable accounting practice and applicable law. 
Misstatements, including omissions, are considered to be material if they, individually or in the 
aggregate, could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken 
on the basis of the financial statements.

Materiality for planning purposes

We have determined financial statement materiality based on a proportion of the gross 
expenditure of the Authority for the financial year. In the prior year we used the same 
benchmark. Materiality at the planning stage of our audit is £1.3m (PY £1.26m) for the Council, 
which equates to 2% of your prior year gross expenditure. We reconsider planning materiality if, 
during the course of our audit engagement, we become aware of facts and circumstances that 
would have caused us to make a different determination of planning materiality. We design our 
procedures to detect errors in specific accounts at a lower level of precision which we have 
determined to be £100k for audit fees, related party transactions, senior management 
remuneration disclosures and exit packages which are material by nature.

We reconsider planning materiality if, during the course of our audit engagement, we become 
aware of facts and circumstances that would have caused us to make a different determination 
of planning materiality.

Matters we will report to the Audit and Governance Committee

Whilst our audit procedures are designed to identify misstatements which are material to our 
opinion on the financial statements as a whole, we nevertheless report to the Audit and 
Governance Committee any unadjusted misstatements of lesser amounts to the extent that 
these are identified by our audit work. Under ISA 260 (UK) ‘Communication with those charged 
with governance’, we are obliged to report uncorrected omissions or misstatements other than 
those which are ‘clearly trivial’ to those charged with governance. ISA 260 (UK) defines ‘clearly 
trivial’ as matters that are clearly inconsequential, whether taken individually or in aggregate 
and whether judged by any quantitative or qualitative criteria.  In the context of the Authority, 
we propose that an individual difference could normally be considered to be clearly trivial if it is 
less than £65k (PY £63k). 

If management have corrected material misstatements identified during the course of the audit, 
we will consider whether those corrections should be communicated to the Audit and 
Governance Committee to assist it in fulfilling its governance responsibilities.

Prior year gross expenditure

£65.12m Council

(PY: £63.44m)

Materiality

Prior year gross expenditure

Materiality

£1.3m

Whole financial 
statements materiality

(PY: £1.26m)

£65k

Misstatements reported 
to the Audit and 
Governance Committee

(PY: £63k)

P
age 21

A
genda Item

 6



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Dartford Borough Council   |  2019/20 10

8. Value for Money arrangements
Background to our VFM approach

The NAO issued its guidance for auditors on Value for Money work in November 2017. The
guidance states that for Local Government bodies, auditors are required to give a
conclusion on whether the Authority has proper arrangements in place to secure value for
money.

The guidance identifies one single criterion for auditors to evaluate:

“In all significant respects, the audited body takes properly informed decisions and deploys
resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people.”

This is supported by three sub-criteria, as set out below:

Significant VFM risks

Those risks requiring audit consideration and procedures to address the likelihood that 
proper arrangements are not in place at the Authority to deliver value for money.

Financial Sustainability

The Council will need to manage it’s financial position and savings targets
closely during the medium term. As part of our work we will consider the
council’s arrangements in place for managing the impact of COVID-19 on its
Financial Plan.

We will review arrangements in place for monitoring the 19/20 budget and
progress made against the 2020/21 budget.

Informed 
decision 
making

Sustainable 
resource 

deployment

Working 
with partners 
& other third 

parties

Value for 
Money 

arrangements 
criteria

P
age 22

A
genda Item

 6



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Dartford Borough Council   |  2019/20 11

9. Audit logistics & team 

Client responsibilities

Where clients do not deliver to the timetable agreed, we need to ensure that this does not 
impact on audit quality or absorb a disproportionate amount of time, thereby 
disadvantaging other clients. Where the elapsed time to complete an audit exceeds that 
agreed due to a client not meeting its obligations we will not be able to maintain a team on 
site. Similarly, where additional resources are needed to complete the audit due to a client 
not meeting their obligations we are not able to guarantee the delivery of the audit to the 
agreed timescales. In addition, delayed audits will incur additional audit fees.

Our requirements 

To minimise the risk of a delayed audit, you need to ensure that you:

• produce draft financial statements of good quality by the deadline you have agreed with 
us, including all notes, the narrative report and the Annual Governance Statement

• ensure that good quality working papers are available at the start of the audit, in 
accordance with the working paper requirements schedule that we have shared with 
you

• ensure that the agreed data reports are available to us at the start of the audit and are 
reconciled to the values in the accounts, in order to facilitate our selection of samples

• ensure that all appropriate staff are available on site throughout (or as otherwise 
agreed) the planned period of the audit

• respond promptly and adequately to audit queries.

Iain Murray, Engagement Lead

Iain will be the main point of contact for the Chief Executive, City 
Treasurer, Section 151 Officer and Members. Iain will share his 
wealth of knowledge and experience across the sector providing 
pragmatic solutions and acting as a sounding board with Members 
and the Audit Board. Iain will ensure our audit is tailored 
specifically to you and is delivered efficiently. Iain will review all 
reports and the team’s work.

Keith Mungadzi, Audit Manager

Keith will be responsible for overall audit management, quality 
assurance of audit work and output and liaison with the Audit 
Board. Keith will be the escalation contact for complex or unusual 
queries and will review the work performed by the on-site audit 
team

Ezgi Aslan, Audit Incharge

Ezgi will lead the onsite team and will be the day to day contact for 
the audit. Ezgi will monitor the deliverables, manage the query log 
with your finance team and highlight any significant issues and 
adjustments to senior management. Ezgi will undertake the more 
technical aspects of the audit, coach the junior members of the 
team and review the team work.

Planning and
risk assessment 

Interim audit
March 2020

Year end audit
July & August 2020

Audit Board 
January 2020

Audit Board
March 2020

Audit Board
tbc 2020

Audit Board
tbc 2020

Audit 
Findings 
Report

Audit 
opinion

Audit 
Plan

Interim 
Progress 

Report

Annual 
Audit 
Letter

P
age 23

A
genda Item

 6



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Dartford Borough Council   |  2019/20 12

10. Audit fees

Actual Fee 2017/18 Actual Fee 2018/19 Proposed fee 2019/20 

Council Audit £46,405 £35,732 £43,232

Total audit fees (excluding VAT) £46,605 £35,732 £43,232

.

Assumptions:
In setting the above fees, we have assumed that the Authority will:
- prepare a good quality set of accounts, supported by comprehensive and well presented working papers which are ready at the start of the audit
- provide appropriate analysis, support and evidence to support all critical judgements and significant judgements made during the course of preparing the financial statements
- provide early notice of proposed complex or unusual transactions which could have a material impact on the financial statements.

Relevant professional standards:
In preparing our fee estimate, we have had regard to all relevant professional standards, including paragraphs 4.1 and 4.2 of the FRC’s Ethical Standard which stipulate that the Engagement Lead 

(Key Audit Partner) must set a fee sufficient to enable the resourcing of the audit with staff of appropriate skills, time and abilities to deliver an audit to the required professional standard.

Planned audit fees 2019/20

During 2017, PSAA awarded contracts for audit for a five year period beginning on 1 April 2018. 2019/20 is the second year of that contract. The scale fee set by PSAA at the beginning of the 
contract was £46,553. Since that time, there have been a number of developments within the accounting profession. 

Across all sectors and firms, the FRC has set out its expectation of improved financial reporting from organisations and the need for auditors to demonstrate increased scepticism and challenge 
and to undertake additional and more robust testing. Within the public sector, where the FRC has recently assumed responsibility for the inspection of local government audit, the regulator 
requires that all audits achieve a 2A (few improvements needed) rating. 

Our work across the sector in 2018/19 has highlighted areas where local government financial reporting, in particular, property, plant and equipment and pensions, needs to be improved. We 
have also identified an increase in the complexity of local government financial transactions. Combined with the FRC requirement that 100% of audits achieve a 2A rating this means that 
additional audit work is required. We have set out below the expected impact on our audit fee. The table overleaf provides more details about the areas where we will be undertaking further 
testing. 

As a firm, we are absolutely committed to meeting the expectations of the FRC with regard to audit quality and local government financial reporting. Our proposed work and fee at the planning 
stage, as set out below and with further analysis overleaf, has been agreed with the Director of Finance and is subject to PSAA agreement. 

P
age 24

A
genda Item

 6



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Dartford Borough Council   |  2019/20 13

Audit fee variations – Further analysis 
Planned audit fees

The table below shows the planned variations to the original scale (contracted in the case of non PSAA) fee for 2019/20 based on our best estimate at the audit planning stage. Further issues identified during 
the course of the audit may incur additional fees. In agreement with PSAA (where applicable) we will be seeking approval to secure these additional fees for the remainder of the contract via a formal rebasing 
of your scale fee to reflect the increased level of audit work required to enable us to discharge our responsibilities. Should any further issues arise during the course of the audit that necessitate further audit 
work additional fees will be incurred, subject to PSAA approval. 

Audit area £ Rationale for fee variation

Scale fee 35,732

Raising the bar 2,500 The Financial Reporting Council (FRC) has highlighted that the quality of work by all audit firms needs to improve across local 
audit. This will require additional supervision and leadership, as well as additional challenge and scepticism in areas such as 
journals, estimates, financial resilience and information provided by the entity. This will entail increased scoping and sampling.

Pensions – valuation of 
net pension liabilities 
under International 
Auditing Standard (IAS) 
19

1,750 The Financial Reporting Council (FRC) has highlighted that the quality of work by all audit firms in respect of IAS 19 needs to 
improve across local government audits. Accordingly, we plan to increase the level of scope and coverage of our work in respect 
of IAS 19 this year to reflect the expectations of the FRC and ensure we issue a safe audit opinion.

Specifically, we have increased the granularity, depth and scope of coverage, with increased levels of sampling, additional levels 
of challenge and explanation sought, and heightened levels of documentation and reporting.

PPE Valuation – work of 
experts 

1,750 As above, the FRC has also determined that auditors need to improve the quality of audit challenge on PPE valuations across 
the sector.

Specifically, we have increased the granularity, depth and scope of coverage, with increased levels of sampling, additional levels 
of challenge and explanation sought, and heightened levels of documentation and reporting.

New Accounting 
Standards

1,500 Note that PSAA’s original scale fee for this contract was set in March 2018, so any new developments since that time need to be 
priced including new accounting standards

Revised scale fee (to be 
approved by PSAA)

£43,232

P
age 25

A
genda Item

 6



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Dartford Borough Council   |  2019/20 14

10. Independence & non-audit services
Auditor independence

Ethical Standards and ISA (UK) 260 require us to give you timely disclosure of all significant facts and matters that may bear upon the integrity, objectivity and independence of the firm 
or covered persons relating to our independence. We encourage you to contact us to discuss these or any other independence issues with us.  We will also discuss with you if we make 
additional significant judgements surrounding independence matters. 

We confirm that there are no significant facts or matters that impact on our independence as auditors that we are required or wish to draw to your attention. We have complied with the 
Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard and we as a firm, and each covered person, confirm that we are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial 
statements. 

We confirm that we have implemented policies and procedures to meet the requirements of the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical Standard and we as a firm, and each covered 
person, confirm that we are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial statements. Further, we have complied with the requirements of the National Audit 
Office’s Auditor Guidance Note 01 issued in December 2017 and PSAA’s Terms of Appointment which set out supplementary guidance on ethical requirements for auditors of local 
public bodies. 

Other services provided by Grant Thornton

For the purposes of our audit we have made enquiries of all Grant Thornton UK LLP teams providing services to the Authority. The following other services were identified.

The amounts detailed are fees agreed to-date for audit related and non-audit services to be undertaken by Grant Thornton UK LLP in the current financial year. These services are 
consistent with the Authority policy on the allotment of non-audit work to your auditors. All services have been approved by the Audit and Risk Committee. Any changes and full details of 
all fees charged for audit related and non-audit related services by Grant Thornton UK LLP and by Grant Thornton International Limited network member Firms will be included in our 
Audit Findings report at the conclusion of the audit.
None of the services provided are subject to contingent fees. 
The firm is committed to improving our audit quality – please see our transparency report - https://www.grantthornton.ie/about/transparency-report/

Service £ Threats Safeguards

Audit related:

Certification of Housing 
Benefit Grant 2019/20

tbc Self Interest (because 
this is a reoccurring fee)

The level of this recurring fee taken on its own is not considered a significant threat to independence as the fee  
for this work  in 2018/19 was £23,000 comparison to the total fee for the audit of £43,232 and in particular 
relative to Grant Thornton UK LLP’s turnover overall. Further, it is a fixed fee and there is no contingent element 
to it. These factors all mitigate the perceived self-interest threat to an acceptable level.

Certification of Housing 
capital receipts grant

2,000 Self-Interest (because 
this is a recurring fee)

The level of this recurring fee taken on its own is not considered a significant threat to independence as the fee  
for this work is £2,000 in comparison to the total fee for the audit of £43,232 and in particular relative to Grant 
Thornton UK LLP’s turnover overall. Further, it is a fixed fee and there is no contingent element to it. These 
factors all mitigate the perceived self-interest threat to an acceptable level.

P
age 26

A
genda Item

 6



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Dartford Borough Council   |  2019/20

Appendices

A. Audit Quality – national context P
age 27

A
genda Item

 6



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Dartford Borough Council   |  2019/20 16

Appendix A: Audit Quality – national context

What has the FRC said about Audit Quality?

The Financial Reporting Council (FRC) publishes an annual Quality Inspection of our firm, 
alongside our competitors. The Annual Quality Review (AQR) monitors the quality of UK 
Public Interest Entity audits to promote continuous improvement in audit quality.

All of the major audit firms are subject to an annual review process in which the FRC 
inspects a small sample of audits performed from each of the firms to see if they fully 
conform to required standards.

The most recent report, published in July 2019, shows that the results of commercial audits 
taken across all the firms have worsened this year. Specifically for Grant Thornton the FRC 
identified the need for us to:

• improve the extent and rigour of challenge of management in areas of judgement

• improve the consistency of audit teams’ application of professional scepticism

• strengthen the effectiveness of the audit of revenue

• improve the audit of going concern

• improve the audit of the completeness and evaluation of prior year adjustments.

The FRC has also set all firms the target of achieving a grading of ‘2a’ (minor 
improvements required) or better on all large commercial audits. We have set ourselves 
the same target for public sector audits from 2019/20.

Other sector wide reviews

Alongside the FRC, other key stakeholders including the Department for Business, energy 
and Industrial Strategy (BEIS) have expressed concern about the quality of audit work and 
the need for improvement. A number of key reviews into the profession have been 
undertaken or are in progress. These include the review by Sir John Kingman of the 
Financial Reporting Council (Dec 2018), the review by the Competition and Markets 
authority of competition within the audit market, the ongoing review by Sir Donald Brydon 
of external audit, and specifically for public services, the Review by Sir Tony Redmond of 
local authority financial reporting and external audit. As a firm, we are contributing to all 
these reviews and keen to be at the forefront of developments and improvements in public 
audit.

What are we doing to address FRC findings?

In response to the FRC’s findings, the firm is responding vigorously and with purpose. As 
part of our Audit Investment Programme (AIP), we are establishing a new Quality Board, 
commissioning an independent review of our audit function, and strengthening our senior 
leadership at the highest levels of the firm, for example through the appointment of Fiona 
Baldwin as Head of Audit. Whilst we recognise we have work to do, we are confident these 
investments will make a real difference. 

We have also undertaken a root cause analysis and put in place processes to address the 
issues raised by the FRC. We have already implemented new training material that will 
reinforce the need for our engagement teams to challenge management and demonstrate 
how they have applied professional scepticism as part of the audit. Further guidance on 
auditing areas such as revenue has also been disseminated to all audit teams and we will 
continue to evolve our training and review processes on an ongoing basis.

What will be different in this audit?

We will continue working collaboratively with you to deliver the audit to the agreed 
timetable whilst ensuring the issues identified by the FRC are addressed and improving our 
audit quality. In achieving this you may see, for example, an increased expectation for 
management to develop properly articulated papers for any new accounting standard, or 
unusual or complex transactions. In addition, you should expect engagement teams to 
challenge management in areas that are complex, significant or highly judgmental which 
may be the case for accounting estimates, going concern, related parties and similar 
areas. As a result you may find the audit process more challenging than previous audits. 
These changes will give the audit committee and the board greater confidence that we 
have delivered a high quality audit and that the financial statements are not materially 
misstated. Challenging management will also enable us to provide greater insights into the 
quality of your finance function and internal control environment and provide those charged 
with governance confidence that a material misstatement due to fraud will have been 
detected.

We will still plan for a smooth audit and ensure this is completed to the timetable agreed. 
However, there may be instances where we may require additional time for both the audit 
work to be completed to the highest quality and to ensure management have appropriate 
time to consider any matters raised. This may require us to agree with you a delay in 
signing the announcement and financial statements. To minimise this risk, we will keep you 
informed of progress and risks to the timetable as the audit progresses.

We are absolutely committed to delivering audit of the highest quality and we should be 
happy to provide further detail about our improvement plans should you require it. 

P
age 28

A
genda Item

 6



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Dartford Borough Council   |  2019/20

© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member 
firms, as the context requires.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each member firm is a 
separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one 
another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. 

grantthornton.co.uk

P
age 29

A
genda Item

 6



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 30



               

AUDIT BOARD 
22 JULY 2020 

 
 
COUNTER FRAUD & COMPLIANCE TEAM ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20 
 

 
1. Summary 
 

This report is to update the Audit Board on work undertaken by the Counter 
Fraud & Compliance Team during the year ended 31 March 2020. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATION 
 

2.1 That Members note the work undertaken by the Counter Fraud & 
Compliance Team in 2019/20. 

 
 

 
3. Background and Discussion 

 
3.1 The Counter Fraud & Compliance Team is based within the 

Dartford/Sevenoaks shared services Revenues & Benefits Department.   
 
3.2 The Council is committed to supporting the most vulnerable groups within 

the Borough of Dartford by awarding them the discounts, exemptions, 
reductions and reliefs to which they are entitled. 

 
3.3 The Counter Fraud & Compliance Team co-ordinate the Council’s 

participation in all of the government led counter fraud initiatives and 
creates pro-active exercises designed to protect valuable Council Tax and 
Business Rate revenue collection. 

Summary of Issues in the Report 

4 The update as shown at Appendix A summarises the following aspects: 

 An overall summary of the responsibilities of the Counter Fraud & 
Compliance Team during 2019/20.  

 A breakdown of the successes achieved by the Counter Fraud & 
Compliance Team during the period April 2019 to March 2020.  
 

 A summary of plans for 2020/21. 

5 The Council is determined that the culture and ethos of the organisation is 
one of honesty and opposition to fraud and corruption. The work of the 
Counter Fraud & Compliance Team reinforces the Council’s zero tolerance 
approach to fraud and corruption.   

Page 31 Agenda Item 7



  

AUDIT BOARD 
22 July 2020 

 

  

6 Members are requested to note the contents of the report and endorse the 
work of the team. 

7. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 
assessments 

 

Financial Implications The cost of the service for 2019/20 has 
been mostly met from funding from the 
major preceptors and from the income 
recovered via identified fraud. 

Legal Implications None 

Staffing Implications None 

Administrative Implications None 

Risk Assessment No uncertainties and/or constraints. 

  
Appendices 
 
Appendix A – 2019/20 Counter Fraud & Compliance End of Year Report 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Documents 
consulted 

Date File Ref Report  
Author 

Section and 
Directorate 

Exempt 
Information 
Category 

N/A  N/A Glen Moore 
01732 227471 
 
  

Revenues  
& Benefits 

N/A 

 
 
 
  

Page 32Agenda Item 7



  

AUDIT BOARD 
22 July 2020 

 

  

Appendix A 
 
Counter Fraud & Compliance Team 

Year End Report 2019/20 

1. Introduction 

This report is to update the Audit Board on the work undertaken by the Counter 
Fraud & Compliance Team for the year ending 31 March 2020.  

2. Background 
 
The Counter Fraud & Compliance Team is a team of officers specially trained to 
investigate instances of fraud and financial irregularity. It is purposely located 
within the Revenues & Benefit Department to assist in reviewing the validity of 
discounts, exemptions, reductions and allowances allowed by the Business Rates, 
Council Tax and Benefit Assessment Teams. The team also provides general 
advice and assistance to all other departments in relation to anti-fraud matters. 

3. Successes 
 
Business Rates 

The Counter Fraud & Compliance Team has made big strides in recent years in 
increasing its support to the Business Rates Team in relation to counter fraud 
matters. In 2018/19, Dartford Borough Council joined a Kent wide initiative 
designed to highlight fraud within the area of Small Business Rate Relief and 
thereby increase the revenue that the authority can collect.  

This year the Counter Fraud & Compliance Team has been able to build on those 
early successes by working closely with the Kent Fraud Hub (the Kent Intelligence 
Network) to expand enquiries into the area of businesses, which have deliberately 
failed to register themselves to pay the business tax. Dartford Borough Council and 
the Kent Intelligence Network have had success in identifying even more 
commercial units, which should have being paying Business Rates.  

The table below shows the financial impact on the local authority of this work over 
the last three financial years:   

  2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 

Number of cases 
Adjusted 

0 
 

6 10 

Increase in tax 
yield 

0 
 
 

£35,499 
 

£92,078 
 

Increase in net 
revenue 

0 
 

£35,499 £64,956 

Increase in next 
years net 
revenue 

0 £4,779 
 

£33,308 

Page 33 Agenda Item 7



  

AUDIT BOARD 
22 July 2020 

 

  

The tax yield is the gross amount that the authority would issue bills for, but some 
units/businesses are eligible for reliefs or exemptions, for example Small Business 
Rates Relief (SBRR). SBRR attracts a 100% reduction in the annual charge and so 
the ratepayer pays no tax for the year. Work conducted by the Counter Fraud 
Team resulted in £92,078 more in bills being issued with a net effect of £64,956 
more revenue being attained. An important point to remember is that once a unit is 
registered for Business Rates the preceptors will benefit from additional revenue in 
subsequent years. The £33,308 figure in the previous table shows an estimate of 
the potential increase in Dartford Borough Council’s tax revenue for 2020/21 from 
the work conducted by the Counter Fraud Team in 2019/20. 

 
Council Tax 
 
The Counter Fraud & Compliance Team continues to support the Council Tax 
Team in preventing, detecting and investigating erroneous claims for Council Tax 
discounts and exemptions. Dartford Borough Council participates in all of the 
government led counter fraud initiatives as well as creating pro-active local 
programmes in collaboration with our Kent partners through the Kent Intelligence 
Network.  

The Council Tax related results achieved by the team last over the past three 
financial years are as follows: 

 

 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 

Number of cases 
Adjusted 

216 
 
 

260 198 
 

Increase in tax 
yield 

123,504 
 
 

183,730 
 

179,263 
 

Increase in net 
tax revenue 

123,504 
 
 

179,263 179,263 

 
 
Housing Benefit 
 
Local authorities administer Housing Benefit on behalf of the Department for Work 
& Pensions (DWP), although Housing Benefit fraud is investigated by DWP fraud 
investigators.  

When local authority investigation officers review the claims made by Council Tax 
Reduction recipients there is a high probability that those same claimants are also 
receiving help with their rent, i.e. Housing Benefit. 

The table below shows the impact of local authority investigation on Housing 
Benefit claims over the last three financial years: 

Page 34Agenda Item 7



  

AUDIT BOARD 
22 July 2020 

 

  

 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 

Number of  
Housing Benefit 
claims adjusted 

23 
 
 

28 14 
 

Value of  
Housing Benefit 

removed 

80,517 
 
 

89,637 
 

66,044 
 

 
 

4. Future Developments 
 

The Counter Fraud & Compliance team will continue to strive to use the technology 
available to discover residential properties not registered to pay Council tax and 
business units which fail to register themselves to pay Business Rates as well as 
assisting the authority in reaching its goal of eradicating fraud and corruption within 
the organisation in line with the Council’s Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy. 

 

Page 35 Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 36



 
AUDIT BOARD 
22nd July 2020 

 
 
ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2019/20 
 

1. Summary 
 

The Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in 
accordance with the law and proper standards and that public money is 
safeguarded and properly accounted for. In discharging this overall 
responsibility, the Council has to ensure that it has good governance 
arrangements and that it operates a sound system of internal control and 
that it reviews them annually. This report considers the governance 
arrangements and the system of internal control which operated during 
2019/20 and the review that has taken place.  

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

2.1 That the review of the Council’s Corporate Governance arrangements be 
noted. 

 
2.2 That the Annual Governance Statement 2019/20 at Appendix A to the 

report, be approved for inclusion in the Annual Statement of Accounts, 
together with the Governance Action Plan for 2020/21, at the end of 
Appendix B. 
 

 
3. Background and Discussion   
 

3.1 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require that the Council 
prepares an annual governance statement. 

 
3.2 The Council is also obliged to conduct a review at least once in a year, of 

the effectiveness of its system of internal control and to include a 
statement in the annual accounts. When preparing the annual statement of 
accounts, the Council has to follow the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting.  

 
3.3 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 place a duty on the Council to 

ensure that the findings of the review are considered by Members who 
must approve the annual governance statement that has been prepared in 
accordance with proper practices. 

 
3.4 Senior Officers (the Monitoring Officer, Section 151 Officer, Head of Legal 

Services, Audit Manager and the Financial Services Manager) have 
reviewed the Council’s arrangements against the Local Code of 
Governance which incorporates the CIPFA/SOLACE Principles as set out 
in the publication Delivering Good Governance in Local Government 
(2016). The Annual Governance Statement (AGS) for the year ended 31 

Page 37 Agenda Item 8



                 

AUDIT BOARD 
25 APRIL 2018 

 

  

March 2020 is attached at Appendix A as agreed by the Leader of the 
Council and the Strategic Directors.  

 
3.5 Appendix B details the review process and lays out the actions that have 

been determined through the review.  
 

3.6 Appendix C gives an update on the 2019/20 Action Plan.  
 
4. Relationship to the Corporate Plan 
 
 The production of the Annual Governance Statement is a statutory requirement 

and supports the Council’s Performing Strongly theme. 
 

5. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 
assessments 

 

Financial Implications None 

Legal Implications See paragraphs 3.1 to 3.3 

Staffing Implications None 

Administrative Implications None 

Risk Assessment If the Council does not approve an 
Annual Governance Statement, for 
inclusion in the annual Statement of 
Accounts, the external auditor will give a 
qualified opinion on the accounts. If the 
Statement does not accord with “proper 
practice” the auditor may make 
comment on it in his report to the 
Council on the audit of the accounts.  

 
Appendices 
 

Appendix A -  Annual Governance Statement – 2019/20 
Appendix B -  Review of the Council’s Governance Arrangements – 2019/20 & 
 Governance Action Plan 2020/21 
Appendix C -   2019/20 Governance Action Plan – Progress Review 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Documents 
consulted 

Date File Ref Report  
Author 

Section and 
Directorate 

Exempt 
Information 
Category 

   Tim Sams 
343148 

Financial 
Services/ 
Internal 
Services 

N/A 

 

Page 38Agenda Item 8



Appendix A 
 

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 
 
FOR THE PERIOD 1 APRIL 2019 TO 31 MARCH 2020 
 
SCOPE OF RESPONSIBILITY 
 
Dartford Borough Council (the Council) is responsible for ensuring that its business is 
conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money is 
safeguarded and properly accounted for. The Council also has a duty under the Local 
Government Act 1999 (as amended) to make arrangements to secure continuous 
improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having regard to a 
combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness.  
 
In discharging this overall responsibility, the Council is responsible for implementing 
proper arrangements for the governance of its affairs, the stewardship of the resources 
at its disposal and facilitating the effective exercise of its functions, which includes 
arrangements for the management of risk. 
 
The Council has approved and adopted a Local Code of Corporate Governance (the 
Local Code), which is consistent with the principles and reflects the requirements of 
the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework Delivering Good Governance in Local Government 
(2016).  The Local Code is published on the Council’s website at www.dartford.gov.uk.  
 
This statement explains how the Council has complied with the Local Code and with 
meeting the requirements of regulation 6 of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 
to review and report on the effectiveness of its system of internal control and to prepare 
an Annual Governance Statement. 
 
The Council has in place appropriate management and reporting arrangements to 
enable it to satisfy that its approach to corporate governance is adequate and effective 
in practice.   
 
In discharging this overall responsibility, the Council is also responsible for ensuring 
that there is a sound system of internal control which facilitates the effective exercise 
of the Council's functions, and which includes arrangements for the management of 
risk. 
 
THE PURPOSE OF THE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK  
 
The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, culture and values 
by which the Council is directed and controlled, and by which it, through its activities, 
can account to, engage with and lead the community.  The governance framework 
enables the Council to monitor the achievement of its strategic objectives and to 
consider whether those objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate, cost-
effective services.  
 
The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed 
to manage risk to a reasonable level.  It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve 
policies, aims and objectives and can therefore only provide reasonable and not 
absolute assurance of effectiveness.  The system of internal control is based on an 

Page 39 Agenda Item 8

http://www.dartford.gov.uk/


Appendix A 
 

ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the 
Council's policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being 
realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, 
effectively and economically.  
 
This Annual Governance Statement is produced for the year 1 April 2019 to 31 March 
2020 and includes the period up to the date of approval of the statement of accounts.  
 
THE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK 
 
The key elements of the systems and processes that comprise the Council’s 
governance arrangements are summarised below: 
 
Identifying and communicating our vision and outcomes for citizens and 
service users  
 
The Corporate Plan 2017-2020 has been approved by the General Assembly of the 
Council [17 July 2017 Min 34]. The Corporate Plan is published on the Council’s 
website.   
 
Reviewing our vision and its implications for our governance arrangements  
 
Progress towards the achievement of the objectives is monitored through the 
Performance Management Framework, with performance reports to Management 
Team, Cabinet and Policy Overview Committee, and through other internal review 
mechanisms. 
 
Measuring the quality of services for users, to ensure that they are delivered in 
accordance with the Council’s objectives and for ensuring that they represent 
the best use of resources 
 
The Council measures the quality of service to users through a number of 
mechanisms including: 

 Customer surveys 

 Comments, compliments and complaints 

 Monitoring against targets and indicators 

 Scrutiny by the Scrutiny Committee and reviews by the Policy 
 Overview Committee 

 Comparison with similar authorities 
 
Establishing clear channels of communication with all sections of our 
community and other stakeholders, ensuring accountability and encouraging 
open consultation 
 
The Council has developed a Consultation and Engagement Strategy to meet its duty 
to inform, consult and involve people in the delivery of Council services. An Equalities 
and Diversity Document Framework has been developed to meet the Council’s 
obligations under the Equality Act 2010. The Statement of Community Involvement 
sets out how the community will be involved in decisions about the Council’s Local 
Plan. 

Page 40Agenda Item 8



Appendix A 
 

 
Defining and documenting the roles and responsibilities of the executive, 
non-executive, scrutiny and officer functions, with clear delegation 
arrangements and protocols for effective communication  
 
The Council has an adopted Constitution, which details how the Council operates, 
how decisions are made, and the procedures, which are to be followed to ensure that 
these are efficient, transparent and accountable to local people.  The Constitution 
defines the terms of reference for all Council committees. The Cabinet (exercising the 
executive functions of the Council) is responsible for most decisions.  The Cabinet is 
made up of the Leader and Six Councillors. The Council elects the Leader and the 
Leader appoints the Cabinet. Major decisions are published in advance, in the 
Regulation 9 Notice, and will generally be discussed in a meeting open to the public.  
All decisions must be in line with the Council's overall policies and budget.  Any 
decisions the Cabinet wishes to take outside the budget or policy framework must be 
referred to the General Assembly of the Council to decide.  There is a Scrutiny 
Committee that scrutinises the work of the Cabinet, presenting challenge and the 
opportunity for a decision to be reconsidered. Most scrutiny is undertaken post-
decision but a "call-in" procedure allows Scrutiny Committee to also review Cabinet 
decisions before they are implemented. 
 
The Policy Overview Committee reviews general policies and makes 
recommendations on future policy options to Cabinet.  
 
A Scheme of Delegation to Officers is approved by the Cabinet/General Assembly of 
the Council. This defines the framework and limits within which officers can take 
decisions. 
 
Developing, communicating and embedding codes of conduct, defining the 
standards of behaviour for members and staff  
 
The standards of conduct and personal behaviour expected of Council Members and 
Officers, its partners and the community are defined and communicated through 
codes of conduct and protocols.  These include: 
 

 A Member Code of Conduct  

 An Employee Code of Conduct 

 Regular performance appraisals for staff linked to corporate and service 
 objectives 

 An Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy 

 A Member/Officer Protocol 

 A Whistleblowing Policy 

 An Annual Monitoring Officer report 

 An Audit Board to oversee and monitor the Member Code of Conduct 
                         
Whistleblowing and receiving and investigating complaints from the public 
 
The Council’s Whistleblowing Policy is regularly reviewed and provides for confidential 
reporting on matters of concern. Informants are requested to be open in their 

Page 41 Agenda Item 8



Appendix A 
 

disclosure, but it is recognised that on occasions, informants will wish to remain 
anonymous. 
 
The Council has an effective Corporate Complaints Procedure. A report is submitted 
annually to the Audit Board on corporate complaints. The Cabinet receives an annual 
report from the Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman containing feedback 
statistics from the complaints made to the Ombudsman and comment on the Council’s 
performance in responding to Ombudsman investigations. 
 
Reviewing and updating standing orders, financial instructions, scheme of 
delegations and supporting procedure notes/manuals, which clearly define how 
decisions are taken and the processes and controls required to manage risks 
 
Standing Orders, Contract Standing Orders, Financial Regulations and the Scheme 
of Delegations to Officers are regularly reviewed as are supporting procedures and 
manuals.  
 
Compliance with relevant laws and regulations, internal policies and procedures, and 
that expenditure is lawful  
 
The Council has a duty to ensure that it acts in accordance with the law and various 
regulations in the performance of its functions.  It has developed policies and 
procedures for its Officers and Members to ensure that, as far as possible, they 
understand their responsibilities both to the Council and to the public. Key documents 
and procedures include: 
 

 Standing Orders 

 Contract Standing Orders 

 Procurement Guide 

 Finance Guidance incorporating Financial Regulations 

 Money Laundering procedures 

 Committee reporting procedure including requirements for the monitoring of 

legal and financial implications 

 Regular training on new legal requirements 

 Regular updates from the Head of Legal Services for Members and Officers 

on key changes to the local authority legal framework                      

Other key corporate policies on a range of topics such as Equalities, Customer Care, 
Data Protection, Freedom of Information and Fraud have been adopted.  All policies 
are subject to internal review, to ensure they are adequately maintained and fit for 
purpose.  
 
Measuring the quality of services for users, for ensuring they are delivered in 
accordance with our objectives and for ensuring that they represent the best 
use of resources 
 
The Council, through its budgetary monitoring and control processes, ensures that 
financial resources are being used in accordance with the budget and corporate policy 

Page 42Agenda Item 8



Appendix A 
 

via regular management reporting to Directors, the Finance Portfolio Member and 
Cabinet. 
 
Financial planning is underpinned by service planning and annual budget reviews to 
ensure that individual service plans and service improvements are in line with 
corporate objectives.  
 
Through performance reports, corporate and key service objectives are monitored to 
ensure that performance targets and indicators are being achieved.  
 
Economic, effective and efficient use of resources is subject to review through the 
work of the Scrutiny and Policy Overview Committees, Internal and External Audit 
and annual budget reviews. 
 
 
Financial Management 
 
Responsibility for ensuring that an effective system of internal financial control is 
maintained and operated rests with the S151 Officer.  The systems of internal financial 
control provide reasonable and not absolute assurance that assets are safeguarded, 
that transactions are authorised and properly recorded, and that material errors or 
irregularities are either prevented or would be detected within a timely period. 
 
The CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer is reported to the 
General Assembly as part of the annual budget report. The Council meets all the 
governance requirements contained in the statement. 
 
Internal financial control is based on a framework of management information, 
financial regulations and administrative procedures, which include the segregation of 
duties where practical, management supervision and a system of delegation and 
accountability.  
 
In particular, the process in 2019/20 included:  

 The setting of a one year detailed budget and Medium Term Financial Plan; 

 Monitoring of actual income and expenditure against the annual budget; 

 A budget review by officers and Members; 

 Setting of financial and performance targets; 

 Regular reporting of the Council's financial position to Members; 

 Clearly defined capital expenditure guidelines; 

 Managing risk in key financial service areas. 
 
 
Effectiveness of Internal Audit 
 
The Council’s Internal Audit service is provided in partnership with Sevenoaks District 
Council. 
 
During 2019/20, the internal audit team have worked to deliver the annual audit plan, 
approved by the Audit Board in April 2019. The plan has been delayed both due to the 
restructure in the service and latterly the Covid-19 outbreak. The service has provided 

Page 43 Agenda Item 8



Appendix A 
 

regular updates to Members on the outcomes of audit work, progress on implemented 
audit actions, and also updates regarding the outstanding actions from the External 
Quality Assessment.  
 
In August 2018 the Council entered into a secondment with Mid Kent Audit for the 
provision of an Audit Manager, a role that also fulfils the Chief Audit Executive 
functions. Over the course of the year the service has taken steps to review, update 
and improve delivery of audit work, and the Internal Audit process has been revised 
to reflect the requirements of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). This 
arrangement finished in January and interim arrangements were in place for the 
reminder of the year. 
 
The seconded Audit Manager led the service through a restructure in year with the 
structure changed in order to improve the service and increase added-value. The 
restructure work, recruitment and induction of new staff has taken some time and the 
audit plan has slowed as a result. Additionally, catch-up work towards the end of the 
year was thwarted due to the Covid 19 pandemic.  
 
Internal audit have issued no audit conclusions less than substantial in 2019/20, and 
the majority of audit actions have been agreed and fully implemented. The Audit Board 
request details of outstanding or deferred high priority actions, and while the Board 
has not expressed any concerns over 2019/20, they have the power to invite Officers 
to attend meetings to provide updates directly.    
 
Individual audit reports continue to be issued and distributed to relevant Senior 
Managers, with copies to the Managing Director and Section 151 Officer.  
 
The effectiveness of the Internal Audit service was assessed in 2019/20 (using the 
PSIAS checklist) following the formal follow-up of the External Quality Assessment 
(EQA) by PricewaterhouseCoopers. The assessment was undertaken again in early 
2019/20 and will be the basis of a new EQA which should take place during 2020/21 
which will provide a baseline for the new audit manager (commenced May 2020) to 
work from.  
 
The Audit Board, as those charged with governance, will provide continued oversight 
and direction as required. As such, the operation of the service will also be monitored 
by the Strategic Management Team, and the Section 151 Officer.  
 
Performance and Risk Management 
 
Performance indicators and targets remain under review and are monitored and 
reported internally and externally. Management information on key performance 
indicators are reported monthly. Performance data has continued to be managed 
through Pentana, which enables the Council to input, collate, and report on real time 
performance as necessary.  
  
The need to refresh and improve the risk management framework has continued and 
the work to do that was not completed in 2019/20 due to other priorities. The Council 
will be working with the Audit Partnership to update and rollout a new risk process over 

Page 44Agenda Item 8



Appendix A 
 

2020/21. This work will include updating the risk process to meet recognised modern 
practices, and creating a greater link between operational and strategic level risks.  
 
By doing this, the Council will have greater oversight and more effective management 
of key risks as they arise.  
 
The development needs of Members and senior officers in relation to their strategic 
roles, are supported by appropriate training  
 
Members receive training on key topics or where significant changes have occurred 
or new legislation introduced. Training for officers is considered at the annual appraisal 
meeting and also during the year, if required.  
  
REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS 
 
Dartford Borough Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review 
of the effectiveness of its governance framework, including the system of internal 
control.  This review is informed by: 
 

 The work of Internal Audit and the Chief Audit Executive’s Annual Opinion. 

 The work of senior managers within the Council who have responsibility for the 
 development and maintenance of the governance environment 

 The work of the Data Protection Officer 

 The work of the Senior Information Risk Owner 

 The opinion of the external auditors as expressed in their annual report to the 
 Audit Board. 

 The detailed review undertaken on behalf of the Management Team. 

 The overview provided by Management Team. 

 The Monitoring Officer’s Annual Report to the Audit Board. 
 
The following processes have been applied in maintaining and reviewing the 
effectiveness of the governance framework:  
 
Council 
 
The Corporate Plan and the budget are approved and reviewed by the General 
Assembly of the Council. Other strategies and policies are approved and reviewed by 
the General Assembly of the Council (where the functions are reserved to it, by 
legislation).   
 
Cabinet  
 
The Cabinet receives reports on financial performance.  Strategies and policies are 
approved and reviewed by Cabinet (where the functions are reserved to Cabinet, by 
legislation). 
 
Scrutiny Committee and Policy Overview Committee  
 

Page 45 Agenda Item 8



Appendix A 
 

These Committees have respectively a role in (a) reviewing/scrutinising action and 
decisions taken, (b) advising on and reviewing policies and (c) external scrutiny i.e. 
looking at issues which lie outside the Council’s responsibilities. 
 
 
Audit Board 
 
The Audit Board receives quarterly updates on the assurance, which can be placed 
on various systems and processes during the year, along with an annual assessment 
at the year-end.  
 
The Audit Board reviews reports presented to it by the Audit Manager (Chief Audit 
Executive).  The Board receives a summary of all internal audit reports and keeps a 
check on those areas where adverse audit findings or assurance is given. 
Additionally, the Board has regard to the effectiveness of the Council’s risk 
management arrangements. 
 
The Audit Board receives an annual report from the Monitoring Officer on ethical 
governance arrangements and on the effectiveness of the Corporate Complaints 
Procedure.  
 
Ethics is a key element of governance and the purpose of the Monitoring Officer’s 
annual review of the Council’s ethical governance is to ensure that robust 
arrangements are in place and that the Council continues to develop and improve 
management and reporting arrangements so as to satisfy itself that its approach to 
ethical governance is both adequate and effective in practice.   
 
   
Data Protection Officer 
 
The Head of Legal Services has been appointed the Data Protection Officer (DPO) in 
accordance with the Data Protection Act 2018 (applying the General Data Protection 
Regulation) (the 2018 Act). 
 
The DPO’s minimum tasks are: 
 

 to inform and advise the Council and its employees about their obligations to 
comply with the 2018 Act; 

 to monitor compliance with the 2018 Act, including managing internal data 
protection activities, advising on data protection impact assessments, training 
staff and conducting internal compliance audits; 

 to be the first point of contact for supervisory authorities and for individuals 
whose data is processed (employees, customers etc.). 

 
The DPO operates independently and is required to report to the highest 
management level in the Council. 
 
 
 
 

Page 46Agenda Item 8



Appendix A 
 

Senior Information Risk Officer 
 
The Strategic Director (Internal Services) is the Council’s appointed SIRO who has 
responsibility for ensuring that the Council’s IT systems’ risk within the organisation is 
managed appropriately.   
 
The SIRO’s other responsibilities can be summarised as: 
 

 owning the Council’s overall IT Security Policy and IT risk assessment 
processes and ensuring they are implemented consistently by Information 
Asset Owners; 

 advising the Management Team and the Audit Board on the information risk 
aspects of the Council’s statement on internal controls/annual governance 
statement; 

 reporting to the Audit Board on the effectiveness of the Council’s’ cyber security 
management processes;  

 owning the Council’s IT incident management framework. 
 
Annual Audit Opinion 
 
Based on the work completed to date in 2019-20 and other sources of assurance 
available to the function, the Chief Audit Executive’s overall annual assurance opinion 
is that the Council’s arrangements for internal control, risk management, governance 
and anti-fraud during the period is “sound”. 
                         

 
SIGNIFICANT GOVERNANCE ISSUES   
 
On the basis of the review undertaken and considerd by the Strategic Directors, the 
Council is satisfied that there are no significant governance matters that need to be 
brought to the immediate attention of Members and that the Council’s corporate 
governance arrangements are adequate and operating effectively. 

 
However, the Council continues to seek to improve and strengthen the governance 
and control environment. As such, the assessment against the Governance Code and 
Principles have highlighted some areas for improvement. A supporting action plan is 
appended to this statement.  
 
Over the coming year, the Council will monitor and track progress against the action 
plan, to ensure steps are taken to improve and enhance its governance arrangements.  
The Council is satisfied that these steps will address the need for improvements that 
were identified in the review of effectiveness and will monitor their implementation and 
operation as part of the next annual review.  
 
 

COVID-19 pandemic  

This governance statement AGS assesses governance in place during 2019/20, so 
the majority of the year was unaffected by coronavirus.  

Page 47 Agenda Item 8



Appendix A 
 

However, coronavirus impacted on governance during March 2020. It is essential 
that the AGS reflects the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on governance.  

In March there was an impact on: 

 Business as usual and delivery of services mainly from staff working at home 
and some self-isolation, some services were unable to function during the 
initial lockdown such as parking enforcement. Decisions around any 
necessary changes to internal controls were discussed with senior managers 
and escalated if necessary  

 The Council started a food delivery service for those shielding in partnership 
with NHS volunteers at the request of government and procured personal 
protective equipment to help staff carry out their roles.  

 An initial assessment of the costs and loss of income of immediately apparent 
changes was also carried out and reported to management.   

During the 2020-21 year a continuing response has been in operation including 
additional financial monitoring and assessment of the long-term disruption and 
consequences arising from the coronavirus pandemic. 

Once the crisis is over the local authorities would intent to conduct a review of the 
lessons to be learned from its response. This is included in the action plan.   
 

 
The Leader of the Council        J Kite 

 
 

Strategic Director – Internal Services   S Martin 
Strategic Director – External Services    S Green 
 
 

Page 48Agenda Item 8



Appendix B 
 
  

 

 

Governance Action Plan  

2020-21 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 49

A
genda Item

 8



Appendix B 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, 

and culture and values, by which the Council is directed and 

controlled and the activities through which it is accountable to, 

engages with and leads the community. It enables the Council to 

monitor the achievement of its corporate objectives and to consider 

whether those objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate, 

cost-effective services. 

We are responsible for ensuring that business is conducted in 

accordance with the law and proper standards, that public money is 

safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used economically, 

efficiently and effectively. We also have a duty under the Local 

Government Act 1999 to make arrangements to secure continuous 

improvement in the way in which our functions are exercised, having 

regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness. 

Each year we publish our Annual Governance Statement (AGS). This 

is a statutory statement, which explains the processes and 

procedures in place that enable us to carry out our functions 

effectively. 

As part of drawing the statement together, we assess the 

arrangements in place. This document supports the AGS and shows in 

greater detail the outcomes of that assessment and includes an 

action plan for us to ensure we continue to enhance and improve our 

arrangements where possible.   

 

INTRODUCTION  

P
age 50

A
genda Item

 8



Appendix B 
 

How do we create the Annual Governance Statement?

Annual Governance Statement

Corporate Governance is the system of rules, practices and processes that direct and control the Council. 
Good governance enables us to pursue our Corporate Plan effectively, in a way that is well controlled, 

and where outcomes have been achieved through careful consideration of risk. 

As a Local Authority we are required to prepare an Annual Governance Statement in order to report 
publically on the extent to which  we comply with our own Code of Governance and the principles as 

required through the CIPFA/SOLACE Delivering Good Governance Framework. 

The process for creating the Annual Governance Statement is designed to ensure that governance 
issues are captured as they arise. We seek to respond positively and constructively to address any 

problems, and make sure that we have a clear action plan to track progress. We undertake an annual 
review and assessment against the principles, and sub-principles of the Framework. The diagram 

below summarises the process: 

The Principles
We start by reviewing the 7 Core 

Principles in the Framework alongside 
Our statutory obligations & corporate 

objectives  

Risk Identification
We then identify the key risks to 

the achievement of our 
objectives, referring to the 

strategic risk register

Key Control Measures
We then identify and evaluate 

the controls in place to manage our 
key risks, and identify any gaps 

Assurance
Through review of Council plans, 
policies and procedures, we then 
identify our sources of assurance 
for the operation of key controls

Meetings & Consultations
We meet and consult with 
Managers, and Directors to 

evaluate sources of assurance and 
identify any issues or gaps 

Action Planning
Based on the results of the work 

undertaken, we pull all of the  gaps  and 
findings together to form an Action Plan  

Annual Governance Statement
We summarise the findings of the 

process and draw together the 
conclusions to inform the Annual 

Statement

Approval
The Annual Governance Statement 

is signed by the S151 officer, 
 Monitoring Officer,

 Leader and then
Approved by Audit Board

 

Page 51 Agenda Item 8



Appendix B 
 

Assessment against the seven principles 

The Council has approved and adopted a Code of Corporate Governance. The Code sets out how we apply 

the principles of corporate governance to the way in which we operate and conduct business. The Code 

was developed in accordance with the principles outlined in the framework and guidance notes for 

CIPFA/SOLACE “Delivering Good Governance in Local Government (2016)”. This Framework, is what all 

Local Authorities must comply with, not only as a means of demonstrating good governance, but also by 

preparing an Annual Governance Statement to accompany the Statement of Accounts. 

The following tables show how was have assessed our governance arrangements against each of the core 

principles as set out in the Framework, and in our Code.  

Principle A:  

Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and respecting the rule of 

law 

Examples of how we demonstrate the Principle 

• Officer and Members’ Code of Conduct & Constitution  

• Employee Handbook & HR Policies  

• Appraisals 

• Training and awareness  

• Declarations of interest/gifts and hospitalities register 

• Governance Policies (anti-fraud, whistleblowing, complaints etc.) 

• Oversight through Internal Audit, Audit Board and External Assurance providers 

• Embedded complaints procedures and processes  

Areas we seek to continuously improve  

 Governance arrangements – such as risk management, counter fraud, and whistleblowing  

 Awareness of governance related issues through training and briefings  

 Legal compliance  

Actions for 2020/21 

1. Development and implement the workforce strategy & value framework  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 52Agenda Item 8

http://committeedmz.dartford.gov.uk/documents/s55994/Code%20of%20Corporate%20Governance%20APPENDIX%20A.pdf


Appendix B 
 

 

Principle B:  

Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement 

Examples of how we demonstrate the Principle 

•  Compliance with FOI, DPA & transparency requirements 

• Publication of reports, decisions and minutes  

• Consultation and engagement strategy & consultation log 

• Public website with access to Council information  

• Communications guidance for Officers and Members 

• Joint residents involvement liaison group & community engagement  

• Equalities duty consultation and impact assessments  

Areas we seek to continuously improve  

 Engagement with stakeholders via the website and feedback  

 Use of social media and digital to increase engagement  

 Website and interface between the Council and residents  

 Partnership working (internal and external)  

Actions for 2020/21 

2. Consider hybrid system for physical and virtual Council meetings 

 

Principle C:  

Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social and environmental benefits 

Examples of how we demonstrate the Principle 

• Corporate Plan  

• Related strategies and plans such as Capital Programme, Engagement Strategy, Local Plan  

• Clear financial reporting and ongoing budget monitoring 

• Equality and diversity framework 

• Procurement rules and evaluation criteria  

• Community plans and partnership working 

• Environmental and sustainable considerations incorporated into planning and key decisions  

Areas we seek to continuously improve  

 Asset management strategy and capital strategy   

 Links between service objectives and corporate level outcomes  

Actions for 2020/21 

None 

 

 

 

Page 53 Agenda Item 8



Appendix B 
 

Principle D:  

Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of intended outcomes 

Examples of how we demonstrate the Principle 

• Regular monitoring and reporting of activities to Members 

• Annual budget planning, and Medium Term Financial Planning and reporting  

• Good communication and regular Officer and Member liaison  

• Consultation and engagement feedback translated into actions 

• Oversight and healthy challenge provided by Scrutiny, Audit Board, and various working / 

advisory groups 

• Performance management framework and monitoring system (Pentana) – targets and tracking 

regularly monitored 

Areas we seek to continuously improve  

 Service updates and regular reporting of outcomes to Management Team and Members  

 Internal communications and cross-cutting issues   

Actions for 2020/21 

3. Review Corporate Plan in light of Covid-19 recovery requirements  

4. Review of performance indicators and reporting/monitoring arrangements – effectiveness of 

management oversight, intervention and delivery of outcomes  

 

Principle E:  

Developing the Council’s capacity, including capability of its leadership and individuals within it 

Examples of how we demonstrate the Principle 

• Workforce reporting and monitoring via HR and appraisals  

• Training and development plans linked to objectives 

• Partnership working and wider multi-agency working 

• Schemes of delegations  

• Document job profiles, roles and responsibilities  

• Member induction, training and development  

• Reward and recognition and employee benefits – agile working, wellbeing and employee 

assistance programme (EAP) 

Areas we seek to continuously improve  

 Organisational training and development  

 Skills, expertise and knowledge building – through recruitment and retention  

 Succession planning  

Actions for 2020/21 

5. Asset Management review and associated actions planning and tracking  

6. Consider new ways of working in a post-Covid 19 environment 

 

 

Page 54Agenda Item 8



Appendix B 
 

Principle F:  

Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public financial 

management 

Examples of how we demonstrate the Principle 

• Performance management system and reporting to Management and Members  

• Internal and External audit arrangements in place 

• Transparency through publishing of decisions, spending, scrutiny, Audit Board 

• Clear rules and procedures within constitution  

• Code of Governance in place, and review of governance arrangements undertaken annually  

Areas we seek to continuously improve  

 Governance arrangements and related policies  

 Service transformation and channel shift   

Actions for 2020/21 

7. Complete the refresh and rollout of the risk management framework (strategic level risks and 

operational) 

8. Improve resilience and community capacity to respond to additional peaks in demand. 

 

Principle G:  

Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit, to deliver effective accountability 

Examples of how we demonstrate the Principle 

• Publication of Council documents, decisions and useful information, decisions and spend  

• Compliance with FOI, DPA and Transparency requirements 

• Internal Audit provision provided in partnership with Sevenoaks – audit plan, Charter and Annual 

Opinion publically reported  

• Unqualified External Audit opinion and no adverse findings  

• Schemes of delegation and controlled authorisation limits  

• Communications Strategy  

Areas we seek to continuously improve  

 Improved partnership delivery with Sevenoaks District Council – including Internal Audit  

 Reporting from service level up to Management and Members  

 Oversight through Audit Board and audit functions  

 Public consultation and feedback  

 

Actions for 2020/21 

9. Carry out lessons learnt review of Covid-19 response 

 

 

Page 55 Agenda Item 8



Appendix B 
 

Consolidated Governance Action Plan 2020-21 

Following review and assessment against the principles as set out in our Governance Code and the CIPFA Framework, we have identified  nine actions. 

These will be tracked and monitored over the course of the year, with the purpose and outcomes being to improve governance and ensure compliance with 

requirements. Actions and progress will be updated regularly and reported annually to the Audit Board.  

Ref Action 
Link to Code & 

Framework 
Co-ordinating Officer How will success be measured? 

1 
Develop and implement the workforce strategy & 

value framework 

Principles A, E, 

F, G 
HR Manager 

 Strategy created and adopted 

 Communication and engagement plan to 

support rollout 

2 
Consider Hybrid system for physical and virtual 

meetings 
Principles A, B 

Strategic Director – 

Internal Services 

 Assessment concluded 

 System in place and working effectively  

3 
Review Corporate plan in light of Covid 19 

recovery requirements 

Principles A, F, 

G 

Policy and 

Performance Manager 
 New Corporate Plan agreed 

4 

Review of performance indicators and reporting / 

monitoring arrangements – effectiveness of 

management oversight, intervention and link to 

objectives 

Principles D, F 

Audit Manager, 

Policy and 

Performance Manager 

 Updated reports focussing on outcomes 

and objectives  

 Greater oversight and support to achieve 

outcomes  

5 
Asset Management review and associated actions 

planning and tracking  
Principles C, E Head of Legal Services 

 Delivery of Asset Management Strategy 

action plan  

6 
Consider new ways of working in a post-Covid 19 

environment 
Principle E Strategic Directors  Improved efficiency and effectiveness 

P
age 56

A
genda Item

 8



Appendix B 
 

Ref Action 
Link to Code & 

Framework 
Co-ordinating Officer How will success be measured? 

7 

Complete the refresh and rollout of the risk 

management framework (strategic level risks and 

operational) 

Principles A, F, 

G 
Audit Manager 

 Strategic & operational risk registers in 

place 

 Key risks escalated and reported  

 Risk themes are strategies monitored  

8 
Improve resilience and community capacity 

to respond to additional peaks in demand 
Principles E, F Strategic Directors  Resilience improved 

9 
Carry out lessons learnt review of Covid -19 

response 

Principles D, 

E,G 
Audit Manager 

 Audit Report and consideration of  any 

recommendations 

 P
age 57

A
genda Item

 8



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 58



Governance Action Plan 2019-20 Review       Annex 1     
                            

      

  

Ref Action 
Link to Code 

& Framework 

Co-ordinating 

Officer 
How will success be measured? Update 

1 
Continue work to update and 

circulate the suite of HR policies 

Principles A, E, 

F, G 
HR Manager  

 Approval of new Policies  

 Publication of each Policy 

 Training & awareness for staff and 

managers  

Key policies renewed including 

urgent policy updates for Covid-19. 

2 

Develop and implement the 

workforce strategy & value 

framework 

Principles A, E, 

F, G 
HR Manager 

 Strategy created and adopted 

 Communication and engagement 

plan to support rollout 

In progress 

3 
Review and update the FOI 

system and processes 

Principles B, F, 

G 

Head of Legal 

Services  

 Current system and processes have 

been reviewed and updated to 

ensure all FOIs are logged and to 

ensure that the Information 

Commissioner’s best practice 

reporting requirements are met  

 Training and rollout across the 

Council  

New system in place and training 

provided. 

4 

Review of performance 

indicators and reporting / 

monitoring arrangements – 

effectiveness of management 

oversight, intervention and link 

to objectives 

Principles D, F Audit Manager 

 Updated reports focussing on 

outcomes and objectives  

 Greater oversight and support to 

achieve outcomes  

Audit manager left organisation. 

Item outstanding.  

5 

Asset Management review and 

associated actions planning and 

tracking  

Principles C, E 
Head of Legal 

Services 

 Delivery of Asset Management 

Strategy action plan  

To be delivered between May and 

July 2020 

6 

Review of staff appraisals, 

training and induction (focus on 

continuous improvement)  

Principles A, E HR Manager 

 Creation of new appraisal process 

 Rollout and training for all Officers  

 Monitoring and reporting outcomes  

Process reviewed, decision made 

not to change system at this time.  

7 
Ongoing update of Business 

Continuity Plans – including 
Principle F 

Strategic Director 

(Internal) 
 Contingency planning and tests 

Plans up to date and Brexit 

P
age 59

A
genda Item

 8



Governance Action Plan 2019-20 Review       Annex 1     
                            

      

  

Ref Action 
Link to Code 

& Framework 

Co-ordinating 

Officer 
How will success be measured? Update 

Civic building, and Brexit 

planning 

undertaken 

 Ongoing liaison with Kent Resilience 

Forum 

 Review of IT disaster recovery 

arrangements 

planning. Plans implemented 

successfully during Covid 19 

situation.  

8 
Create a Member development 

and training programme 
Principle E 

Democratic Services 

Manager 

 Delivery of Member induction / 

development sessions 

 Development plans devised for key 

Boards/Committees   

Full programme of Member 

induction events held. Training 

provided for the Planning and 

Licensing committees, Treasury 

Management Panel, and an ongoing 

training programme for the Audit 

Board. GDPR training also provided 

to all Members. 

9 

Refresh and rollout of the risk 

management framework 

(strategic level risks and 

operational) 

Principles A, F, 

G 
Audit Manager 

 Strategic & operational risk registers 

in place 

 Key risks escalated and reported  

 Risk themes are strategies monitored  

Pending, given Audit Manager 

change.  

10 Cyber security and awareness  Principle F 
Strategic Director 

(Internal) 

 Delivery of specific training and 

monitoring of outcomes  

 

Training rolled out across 

organisation 

11 
Review of Health & Safety 

arrangements 
Principle F 

Strategic Director 

(Internal) 

 Delivery of the Health & Safety 

Improvement Plan  

Plan agreed by MT and progress 

being monitored by the Corporate 

Wellbeing Group 

 

P
age 60

A
genda Item

 8



 
AUDIT BOARD 

22 JULY 2020 
 
INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL OPINION (JULY 2020) 
 

1. Summary 
 

1.1 The report sets out the Internal Audit Annual Opinion on the effectiveness 
of the Council’s internal control, governance and risk management 
arrangements. The Opinion is a requirement of Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards (PSIAS) and includes a summary of the work that has been 
taken into consideration when forming the Opinion.  

 
2. RECOMMENDATION 
 

2.1 That Members note the Annual Audit Opinion (Appendix A) 
 

 
3. Background and Discussion 

 
3.1. In accordance with the PSIAS the Chief Audit Executive (a role fulfilled by 

the Audit Manager at Dartford) must deliver an annual internal audit 
opinion to conclude on the effectiveness of the Council’s internal control, 
governance and risk management. The opinion is used to inform the 
Annual Governance Statement which in turn supports the Financial 
Statements. 
 

3.2. The requirements for the opinion are set out in Standard 2450 which 
elaborates on what the opinion must include and take into consideration:  

 

 
 
 

Page 61 Agenda Item 9

https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/standards/public-sector-internal-audit-standards
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/standards/public-sector-internal-audit-standards


 
AUDIT BOARD 

22 JULY 2020 
 

3.3. The Audit Board is required through its Terms of Reference to consider 
the opinion each year and to maintain oversight of the Internal Audit 
service and the work undertaken to support the overall opinion.  

 
4. Internal Audit Resources  

4.1 The opinion is principally derived from completion of the Internal Audit Plan 
(agreed by the Board in April 2019). The plan at the time set out the 
resources needed to undertake the work, and progress has been reported 
throughout the year on how those resources have been deployed.  

5. Relationship to the Corporate Plan 

5.1 Not applicable 
 

6. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 
assessments 
 

Financial Implications As this report is for noting, there are no direct 
financial implications.  

Legal Implications 

We present this report for noting only and so it 
has no direct legal implications. However, the 
Accounts and Audit Regulations require Internal 
Audit to operate in accordance with the PSIAS. 
The relevant section is noted above.  

Staffing Implications 
The use of Internal Audit resources are set out 
in the report (Appendix A).  

Administrative 
Implications 

As this report is for noting, there are no direct 
administrative implications. 

Risk Assessment 
Internal Audit work is risk-based, and is 
therefore directly aligned to key risks that face 
the Council.  

 
7. Details of Exempt Information Category 

 
7.1 Not applicable 
 

8. Appendices 
 
8.1 Appendix A – Internal Audit Annual Opinion (2019/20) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 62Agenda Item 9



 
AUDIT BOARD 

22 JULY 2020 
 

 
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Documents consulted Date Report Author 
Section & 

Directorate 

Exempt 
Information 
Category 

 

Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards (March 2017) 
 

22/06/20 
 
 

Audit Manager 
01322 343004 

Internal Audit 
Partnership 
 
& 
 
Strategic Director 
(Internal Services) 
 

N/A 

 

Page 63 Agenda Item 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 64



 

 
Annual Audit Opinion 

2019-20 

 
July 2020 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 65 Agenda Item 9



 
 

Introduction 

All Local Authorities must make proper provision for internal audit in line with the Local Audit and 

Accountability Act 2014 and the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015. The Regulations state that 

services must follow the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS).  The PSIAS sets out a 

consolidated approach to internal auditing standards across the whole of Public Sector. 

Internal Audit is a vital component to the Council’s effective running. We provide assurance, advice 

and insight to help protect and enhance internal control, governance and risk management 

arrangements. The service has a wider role to be the Council’s ‘critical friend’, with the ability to 

confidently challenge current practice, champion best practice and support management to 

improve how the Council operates. This is achieved through the provision of combined assurance 

and consulting activities, as set out in the mandated definition within the Standards: 

‘an independent, objective assurance and consulting activity designed to add value and improve 

an organisation’s operations. It helps an organisation accomplish its objectives by bringing a 

systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk management, 

control and governance processes’ 

The Standards require that the Chief Audit Executive (Audit Manager) provides periodic updates on 

progress against the audit plan and issues an annual Audit Opinion.  The Opinion is a conclusion on 

the effectiveness of the Council’s internal control, corporate governance and risk management 

arrangements. It is a key part of the overall assurance that Members and Officers of the Council 

draw on when evaluating governance.  The extract below shows the expectations for the Annual 

Opinion as set out in the Standards: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The following report sets out the Chief Audit Executive’s annual Audit Opinion for the financial year 

2019/20, including a summary of all audit work completed during 2019/20. 

Page 66Agenda Item 9

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2014/2/contents/enacted
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2014/2/contents/enacted
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2015/234/pdfs/uksi_20150234_en.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/641252/PSAIS_1_April_2017.pdf


 
 

Scope 

The Audit Board approved the Internal Audit Charter in March 2019 and an updated version of the 

Internal Audit Charter is to be reviewed by Audit Board as a separate agenda item at the July 2020 

meeting.  The Charter sets out the scope of our work, and includes the parameters and safeguards 

in place for us to undertake assurance, advisory and consultative work.   

Evidence to support the Opinion is principally obtained through completing the work as set out in 

our audit plan, in addition to the expertise, knowledge and intelligence gained over the course of 

the year. There are three areas within the scope for the Opinion, these are: 

Internal control: How the Council ensures achievement of its objectives. In particular, 

effectiveness and efficiency of operations, reliability of financial reporting and compliance 

with law, rules and policies. 

Governance: The system of rules, practices and processes by which the Council is directed 

and controlled.  

Risk Management: How the Council identifies, evaluates and responds to risks facing the 

achievement of objectives.  

The Opinion relates to the 2019/20 financial year. 

Limitations  

The Standards demand that the audit plan remains flexible throughout the year to react to 

emerging risks.  Limitations on available audit resources means it is not possible to address all risks 

facing the Council.   The Opinion can therefore only give reasonable assurance that the systems of 

internal control, governance and risk management are effective.  

During 2019/20 the Internal Audit service has been through a number of significant challenges and 

changes, which has reduced our productivity.  The main factors to note are as follows:  

 Full Team restructure, leading to a prolonged vacancy factor of 2 FTE 

 Recruitment and induction of the Trainee Auditor, Lead Auditor and Audit Manager posts 

 Covering the vacant Audit Manager / Chief Audit Executive role between January and May 
2020. 

 Audits postponed on client request due to COVID-19 

 Audit resources redeployed to assist the Councils response to COVID-19 between March – 
June 2020 

 

This therefore means the 2019/20 Annual Audit Opinion is limited to 9 audit projects, out of the 

originally agreed 29 projects.   However, we have also been able to base our annual audit opinion 

on other non-project consultancy related work which has been completed during the year, 

particularly during the COVID-19 pandemic.  This consultancy work includes supporting the 

Council’s Business Continuity response by reviewing all business continuity impact assessments and 

completing counter fraud checks on a large number of business rate grant applicants.  

Page 67 Agenda Item 9

http://committeedmz.dartford.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=286&MId=2741&Ver=4
http://committeedmz.dartford.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=286&MId=2741&Ver=4


 
 

Independence  

In addition to setting out the role, authority and responsibility of Internal Audit, our Charter also 

defines the safeguards in place for our independence.  

At no point during the year have Officers or Members sought to impede, influence or edit the 

outcomes of our work, our findings or our overall conclusions. I can therefore confirm that we have 

worked with full independence during the year.   

Summary of information that supports the Opinion  

Details of the work conducted to inform the Opinion are set out in the remainder of this report, 

including; use of audit resources, summaries of audit work issued, governance and risk 

management, client satisfaction and service performance.   

The Opinion 

It is my opinion, in the capacity as Chief Audit Executive for Dartford Borough Council, based on the 

work completed in the given period, that for 2019/20 the Council has operated and maintained a 

SOUND system of internal control, governance and risk management. 

 

 

Fran Chivers 

Audit Manager (Chief Audit Executive)  

30 June 2020

Page 68Agenda Item 9



Delivery of the 2019/20 Audit Plan  

The Audit Committee approved our 2019/20 Audit Plan in March 2019.  The Audit Plan set out the following projects: 

 

  AUDIT TITLES 

1 Income System (AIM) 
16 Animal Welfare / Control 

2 Feeder Systems & Journals 
17 Local Air Quality Management 

3 Accounts Receivable 
18 Contract Management 

4 Housing Rent Accounting 
19 Housing Allocations Policy 

5 New Build Capital Programme 
20 Garage Management 

6 Housing Benefits 
21 Disciplinary & Grievance Policy 

7 Strategic Asset Management 
22 Managing Attendance  

8 Corporate Complaints 
23 Agile Working Policy 

9 Risk Management Framework 
24 Case Management 

10 Counter Fraud Risk Assessment 
25 Planning Enforcement 

11 Corporate Project Governance 
26 Application of Discretionary Powers 

12 Governance Policy Work 
27 Staff Appraisals 

13 Corporate Governance Code 
28 Employee Induction 

14 Community Safety Partnership 
29 Dartford Town Centre + Transport & Public Realm Project 

15 Dartford Town Against Crime 

    

P
age 69

A
genda Item

 9

http://committeedmz.dartford.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=286&MId=2741&Ver=4


Our time recording system (Team Mate) logs all time spent on the different audit related tasks 

throughout the year. This system enables us to capture time spent delivering different activities and 

individual audit projects.  

The table below shows how we have utilised audit days between 01 April 2019 – 31 May 2020 (June 

data was not available at the time of writing):  

 

Category 

2019/20 

Plan 

Days 

01 April 2019 – 

31 May 2020 

Audit Plan 

Days 

Remaining 

Percentage 

against 

2019/20 

Audit Plan 

Days 

Risk Management 10 1 

121 72% 

Counter Fraud 5 1 

Member Support / Training / 

Meetings 
10 16 

Follow-Up 15 9 

Audit Planning 10 16 

Advisory & Consultancy 50 52 

NON-AUDIT TOTAL 100 95 

2018/19 Audit Projects 0 64 

2019/20 Audit Projects 325 143 

2020/21 Audit Projects 0 2 

AUDIT PROJECTS TOTAL 325 209 

OVERALL TOTAL 425 304 

 

  

  

Page 70Agenda Item 9



 
 

The total available days for the partnership also takes into account non-chargeable days. Non-

chargeable activities include administration, general management and the ongoing professional 

development of the team. The graph below shows our chargeable and non-chargeable totals 

between 01 April 2019 and 31 May 2020:   

 

Audit Work  

The following section of this report provides a summary of progress against the 2019/20 audit plan.  

Audit projects completed  

The following table provides a summary of all audits completed between 01 July 2019 and 30 June 

2020: 

 

Dartford Audit Plan 2018/19 

No Title Date Issued Assurance Rating 

2018/19 Carry Forward 

- Health & Safety July 2019 N/A 

- Fleet Vehicle Management August 2019 Substantial 

- Building Control October 2019 Substantial 

- Homelessness Reduction Act October 2019 N/A 

2019/20 Audit Work Completed 

1 Income Management Systems (AIM) January 2020 Full 

3 Accounts Receivable April 2020 Full 

8 Corporate Complaints March 2020 Substantial 

13 Corporate Governance Code June 2020 N/A 

14 Community Safety Partnership June 2020 Full 

 

14

19

34

36

56

70

104

121

163

Team Mate Admin

External Event

Team Meetings

Training

Lost Time

Audit Management

Personnel Management

Induction

General Admin

Non Chargeable Days 
01 April 2019 - 31 May 2020

Page 71 Agenda Item 9



 
 

Audit projects in progress  

The following reviews are currently in progress and due to be reported by 31 July 2020: 

 Project Title 

16 Animal Welfare Control 

20  Garage Management 

21 Disciplinary and Grievance Policy 

 

Deferred audit projects 

The following audits have been deferred to 2020/21: 

 Project Title 

2 Feeder Systems 

4 Housing Rent Accounting 

5 New Build Capital Programme 

6 Revenues & Benefits Shared Service Review 

9 Risk Management Framework 

11 Corporate Project Governance 

10 Counter Fraud Risk Assessment 

12 Counter Fraud Policies 

15 Dartford Town Against Crime 

17 Local Air Quality Management 

18 Contract Management 

19 Housing Allocations Policy  

24 Case Management 

25 Planning Enforcement 

28 Employee Induction 

 

Removed from 2019/20 Audit Plan 

The following audits have been removed from the 2019/20 audit plan although Managing 

Attendance and Agile Working will be relevant to our Covid-19 reviews: 

Project Title 

7 Strategic Asset Management 

22 Managing Attendance 

23 Agile Working 

26 Application of Discretionary Powers 

27 Staff Appraisals 

29 Dartford Town Centre – Transport & Public Realm 

Page 72Agenda Item 9



 
 

Audit Work Summaries 

We issue a full report for all of the work completed on the audit plan. Members have requested to 

see executive summaries of all of the work issued in final. Definitions of our assurance ratings are 

provided in Appendix I. 

Health & Safety – Final report issued July 2019 

The Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974 covers occupational health and safety in Great Britain.  

The Health and Safety Executive (HSE), along with Local Authorities (and other enforcing 

authorities) are responsible for enforcing the Act and several other Acts and Statutory Instruments 

relevant to the working environment. 

The HSE publishes a self-assessment checklist for organisations to use to evaluate the effectiveness 

of the Health & Safety (H&S) arrangements in place. We used this checklist to undertake a health-

check style review, by conducting interviews with key officers, documenting processes and 

undertaking testing of key systems and procedures. The report sets out the findings, conclusions 

and overall level compliance with the checklist, including key actions to address any areas of non-

compliance.  

Overall, the Council fully or partially complies with most aspects as set out in by the HSE (43 of 55). 

Health and Safety practices and arrangements are in place, and policies and procedures seek to 

ensure that H&S related matters (including welfare) are taken seriously. There are, however, some 

areas to address and opportunities to improve. Notably, to make the roles and responsibilities both 

at the strategic and operational level clearer, and to enhance monitoring and reporting 

arrangements.  

Health, safety and welfare is at the core of what the Council does, and is co-ordinated through a 

corporate Wellbeing Group, comprising a cross-section of officers and managers. However, it is vital 

that knowledge, understanding and engagement across the whole workforce is effective in order to 

ensure that agreed health and safety practices are embedded and followed. Our results of testing 

(interviews and staff survey) found that while there is awareness of processes and procedures, 

action should be taken to improve corporate understanding of the health and safety arrangements, 

in particular the completion and monitoring of health and safety training.   

The outcomes of the assessment are summarised below: 

Assessment HSE Criteria 

Fully Met 12 

Compliant – Could be improved 14 

Partially compliant 17 

Not met 12 

TOTAL  55 

 

 

Page 73 Agenda Item 9

http://www.google.com/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=1&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwikm8_Sv-_fAhXCAewKHfkFBKIQFjAAegQICxAC&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.hse.gov.uk%2Fwaste%2Fhealth-and-safety-management-system-checkilst.doc&usg=AOvVaw1u1U4UH0yhvEqfL1bVW_7I


 
 

Fleet Vehicle Management – Final Report issued August 2019 

We concluded based on our audit work that the controls in place over the management of the 

Council’s vehicle fleet provide SUBSTANTIAL assurance.   

The Council has 26 vehicles in the ‘fleet’ including the mayoral car, vans, and mobile plant including 

trailers and tractors. These vehicles are owned, insured, maintained and operated by Council 

officers in order to enable key services to be delivered.  

We found that all vehicles tested had valid insurance, and were maintained in compliance with legal 

standards. Controls to prevent fraud and error were also in place.  

 

Due to devolved responsibilities however, the Council did not however have standardised 

procedures in place for maintenance of vehicles and there was also no central contract for MOTs 

which may mean that the Council is not securing value for money.  
 

We raised 3 actions in this review, with the following priority ratings:   

Priority Ranking Number of actions 

Medium 2 

Low 1 

Total 3 

 

Building Control – Final Report issued October 2019 

We concluded based on our audit work that the controls in place over the administration and 

income for Building Control Fees provide a SUBSTANTIAL level of assurance.  

The Building Control Service provides for the checking of new building works within the Borough to 

ensure that they meet the standards of the Building Regulations 2010. The service monitors 

compliance and has a responsibility to the public for the following: 

 The enforcement of Building regulations and related legislation; 

 The control of demolition work; 

 The Control of defective premises and control of dangerous structures. 

The Council sets building control fees which are payable for applicable building work and processes 

and collects annual fee income in the region of £280k each year. Due to the complex and technical 

nature of the service, we scoped this audit to look specifically at the administration processes and 

the management of fee income only.  

Our testing confirms that Building Control applications are processed in accordance with agreed 

procedures and guidance. We found no errors in the system, and all applications were supported by 

the necessary and relevant evidence. All of the fees tested were charged in accordance with our 

published scheme. 

Page 74Agenda Item 9



 
 

However, in undertaking our testing of the financial controls we identified two issues. Firstly, there 

is currently no reconciliation between the Building Control system (Uniform) and the Council’s 

Financial Management System (Cedar). Our individual transaction testing did not identify any 

errors, but our sample was only a small percentage of the total number transactions for the year. 

As such, a full reconciliation would give additional assurance that fees charged and income received 

are balanced. Secondly, the Council has not prepared or published an end of year financial 

statement as required by the Charges Regulations 2010. This published statement details the 

annual chargeable and non-chargeable activities of the Building Control service for the financial 

year.  

A summary of our findings and priority ratings are set out below:  

 

Priority Ranking 
Number of 

recommendations 

Medium 1 

Low 1 

Advisory 1 

Total 3 

 

Homelessness Reduction Act – Final Report issued October 2019 

This review was not assurance rated, and was conducted as a cross authority risk review. We 
undertook workshops with Managers from Dartford and Sevenoaks to identify the risks associated 
with the implementation of the Act. We then tested the effectiveness of the Council’s response to 
each risk.   

Based on the results of the review, it is clear to see that both Councils have responded in different 

ways to the same challenges. Both have taken full advantage of funding options to increase 

resource, expertise and resilience, however, the uncertainty of long-term funding means that 

permanent solutions are difficult to implement.  

Closer working with colleagues across the County could help to provide greater development and 

insight. Our initial workshop for instance enabled the Managers from both Councils to compare and 

contrast approaches and to explore possible sharing of best practice.  

While the challenges around Homelessness remain high on the risk agenda for all Local Authorities, 

Dartford and Sevenoaks appear to be responding effectively to ongoing demands and challenges.    

 

 

 

Page 75 Agenda Item 9



 
 

Income Management Systems (AIM) – Final Report issued January 2020 

We conclude based on our audit work that the controls in place over the Income Management 

system provide FULL assurance.  

This review provides independent assurance over the adequacy of controls for the Income 

Management process. We mapped the system from daily income receipts to bank reconciliations 

and identified the key controls and risks. Our testing of the key controls confirms that the system is 

effective in design and operation.  

Income (via payments) is received through AIM (Axis Income Management). We found all receipts, 

together with the kiosk, are recorded and reconciled daily. Transactions are automatically allocated 

to the correct departmental codes and systems are in place to monitor this. Exception logs assist 

the investigation and placement of unallocated funds, and regular cash flow reports and 

reconciliations ensure that income is recorded and allocated. 

We identified no errors in our key controls testing.  

 

  

Page 76Agenda Item 9



 
 

Accounts Receivable – Final Report issued April 2020 

We conclude based on our audit work that the controls in place over the Accounts Receivable 

system provide FULL assurance. 

Accounts Receivable is a key financial system for the Council. The total amount of debt raised 

through the system in 2018/19 was £20.77 million, of which 98% was paid within the specified 

payment terms. Aged debts (those unpaid after 61 days) represented 1.5% of the total debts raised. 

This review provides assurance over the adequacy of controls for the Accounts Receivable process. 

We mapped the system from creating debtor accounts and raising invoices, to debt management 

and recovery, and identified the key controls and risks. Our testing of the key controls confirms that 

the system is sound. 

Our review found the processes in place to create and amend debtor accounts are sound. Invoices 

are raised and despatched promptly, and controls exist to ensure credit notes are appropriately 

approved. We found regular reports are produced to monitor unpaid invoices and procedures are 

in place to ensure they are recovered accordingly.   

We identified no errors in our key controls testing. We highlighted a few areas to enhance existing 

controls. 

A summary of the actions raised in the review are set out below: 

Priority Ranking Number of audit actions 

Low 3 

Total 3 

 

  

Page 77 Agenda Item 9



 
 

Corporate Complaints – Final Report issued March 2020 

We conclude based on our audit work that the controls in place to ensure compliance with the 

Council’s Corporate Complaints procedure provide Substantial assurance.  

Our audit covered the period from August 2018 to August 2019. In this time, the Council received 

76 formal complaints via the corporate complaints procedure. The majority of these complaints 

were processed and resolved at stage one. However, 14 escalated to stage two. This occurs when 

the complainant requests a stage two review, which must be substantiated by additional or new 

evidence not provided at or taken into account during the stage one investigation. If still 

unsatisfied, the complainant can escalate their complaint to the Local Government & Social Care 

Ombudsman, or if related to a landlord function, to the Housing Ombudsman.  

The Ombudsmen do not normally consider a complaint unless the Council has first had an 

opportunity to deal with that complaint itself. So if someone complains to the Ombudsmen without 

having taken the matter up with the Council, the Ombudsmen will usually refer it back to the 

Council as a ‘premature complaint’ to see if the Council can itself resolve the matter.  

For the year ending 31/08/19, 14 complaints relating to Dartford Borough Council were received by 

the Ombudsmen.  

We independently tested a sample of 12 complaints. Our testing followed each complaint through 

the process to determine the overall level of compliance, up to satisfactory resolution or escalation. 

The cases tested were selected from Pentana, the system used to log all complaints received by the 

Council. We found the policies and procedures underpinning the complaints process are generally 

sound, and testing confirmed that complaints are processed within the required timeframes. 

However, the evidence necessary to support these timeframes was not always held on the system 

and we also could not verify that all complaints had been acknowledged within 7 days. Therefore, 

while the corporate complaints system and framework for dealing with complaints are sufficient, 

improvements are required, principally to quality assurance processes and training provided to new 

managers.  

A summary of the actions raised in the review are set out below: 

Priority Ranking Number of audit actions 

Medium 2 

Low 3 

Advisory 1 

Total 6 

 

 

 

 

Page 78Agenda Item 9



 
 

Code of Corporate Governance – Final report issued July 2020 

Our review found the Council’s arrangements in fulfilling the principles of the Good Governance 

Framework in respect of Principle A are generally sound. We identified some strong practices, 

particularly in relation to the organisation’s overall vision and values, appraisals and officer 

declarations of interests. We have also noted a few opportunities for improvement in relation to 

receiving positive feedback and training.    

Community Safety – Final report issued July 2020 

We concluded based on our audit work that the controls in place to support achievement of the 

Community Safety priorities provide FULL assurance.   

The Dartford and Gravesham Community Safety Partnership was formed in 2006 and is made up of 

statutory agencies brought together under a shared responsibility placed upon them by the Crime 

and Disorder Act 1998 (as amended).  

The Partnership has a statutory duty to produce a plan or strategy setting out how it will work to 

reduce crime and disorder in their areas, which must have regard to the police and crime 

objectives. The Dartford and Gravesham Community Safety Strategy 2019-2022 (the Strategy) looks 

back at the successes of the previous strategy and sets out the priorities for the new period.  

Our review found the governance structure in place to oversee the activities of the Council in its 

contribution towards the delivery of the Strategy is sound. The Council reports individually to its 

Crime and Disorder Scrutiny Committee and collectively to the Community Safety Partnership 

Executive Group. We found the Council maintains communication with its partner agencies through 

daily briefings and periodic operational groups, and standard agenda items and minutes ensure 

their effectiveness. Performance indicators are in place to measure the activities in delivering the 

Strategy, which are reported periodically.  

The Strategy aims to tackle persistent anti-social behaviour and environmental crime (amongst the 

other priorities). We found procedures in place to report and record instances of anti-social 

behaviour and our testing confirmed arrangements exist to investigate and monitor such reports.  

A summary of the actions raised in the review are set out below: 

Priority Ranking Number of audit actions 

Low 1 

Total 1 

 

 

  

Page 79 Agenda Item 9

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1998/37/contents
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1998/37/contents


 
 

Audit Actions 

We raise actions from our work to assist management in addressing control failings, or to suggest 

service improvements. We track and all audit actions when they fall due. The table below 

summarises the follow-up and implementation activity since 01 April 2019: 

 

 

Based on the results of our current follow-up work, there are 8 actions that are ‘live’ and which we 

are monitoring. 7 of these are not yet due, either because the original implementation date has not 

yet lapsed or because we have agreed reasonable revised dates with the service due to additional 

pressures over the last few months. The final action relates to the backlog of inspections for new 

food premises; we are currently discussing this with the service and will provide a verbal update at 

the meeting.  

 

 

  

DARTFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL Total High 

Priority 

Medium 

Priority 

Low 

Priority 

Actions carried forward from 2018/19 2 0 2 0 

2018/19 Actions raised in 2019/20 5 0 3 2 

Total  2018/19 actions 7 0 5 2 

Implemented between 01/04/19 – 31/5/20 3 0 2 1 

 2018/19 Actions remaining 4 

 

0 3 

 

1 

2019/20  Audit actions 8 

8 

 

0 2 6 

Actions where management accepted risk 2 0 1 1 

Implemented between 01/04/19 – 31/5/20 2 0 0 2 

2019/20 Actions remaining 4 0 1 3 

Total actions live 8 0 4 4 

Page 80Agenda Item 9



 
 

Client Satisfaction 

We issue a client survey each time that we complete a piece of audit work. Feedback is important, as 

it helps us to shape the future of the service – to protect areas of good practice, and to address areas 

where we need to improve.  

We received 13 responses during 2019/20. Seven of the returned questionnaires were completed 

using the old manual questionnaire and the remaining 6 were completed using the new electronic and 

redesigned survey.   

The following tables provide a summary of the responses received:  

 

 

 

 

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

Strongly Agree Agree Slightly Disagree Strongly Disagree N/A

Q1. I was given adequate notification and opportunity to contribute 
and comment prior to the Audit Brief being issued

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

Strongly Agree Agree Slightly Disagree Strongly Disagree N/A

Q2. Appropriate staff were interviewed

Page 81 Agenda Item 9



 
 

 

 

 

 

0

1

2

3

4

Strongly Agree Agree Slightly Disagree Strongly Disagree N/A

Q3. Audit grasped relevant issues

0

1

2

3

4

Strongly Agree Agree Slightly Disagree Strongly Disagree N/A

Q4. I am confident with the accuracy of the audit findings

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

Strongly Agree Agree Slightly Disagree Strongly Disagree N/A

Q5. I was given the opportunity to....

5a I was given adequate opportunity to discuss audit findings & recommendations

5b My views were adequately reflected in the final report

Page 82Agenda Item 9



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

0

1

2

3

4

Strongly Agree Agree Slightly Disagree Strongly Disagree N/A

Q6.  The audit report was.....

6a The audit report was timely 6b The audit report was clear and understandable

0

1

2

3

Strongly Agree Agree Slightly Disagree Strongly Disagree N/A

Q7. The audit recommendations were....

7a Relevant 7b The audit recommendations in the final report were practical 7c Realistic

Page 83 Agenda Item 9



 
 

Client Feedback 2019/20 

 

Revised questionnaire responses: 

 

 

 

 

 

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

Definitely Yes No opinion Not really Not at all

Q1. Did you feel involved in the planning and scoping of the audit?

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

Definitely Yes No opinion Not really Not at all

Q2. Did you feel that the audit covered the right areas?

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

Yes Could have been better No No opinion

Q3. We kept you informed and updated throughout the audit

Page 84Agenda Item 9



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

Yes Could have been better No No opinion

Q4. We were sensitive to your availability and workload

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

Yes No

Q5. Did we demonstrate sufficient knowledge of the audit area (service area)?

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

Yes No

Q6. Did we conduct the audit in a professional and courteous manner?

Page 85 Agenda Item 9



 
 

 

 

 

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

Professional Clear / easy to
read

Factually
accurate

Informative /
useful

Succinct Engaging Contemporary

Q7. Our audit report was....

0

1

2

3

Not applicable - no actions
were raised

Absolutely, I believe they
will

Yes, I think so I'm not really sure No

Q8. Do you believe the agreed actions will make a difference?

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

Excellent Positive & Helpful It was OK Never again please! I'd rather not say / no
opinion

Q9. How would you rate your overall audit experience?

Page 86Agenda Item 9



 
 

 

Q10. Could we have done anything better to improve your overall audit experience? 

A Not that I can think of 

B No 

C 
The audit experience was fine and the audit team responded positively to management comments on their 
draft findings. 

D No, it was professionally carried out and non-disruptive 

E No, not at all 

F 
Useful and helpful exercise and made us tackle an area which needed doing. Provided a useful framework 
and second view.   

 

  

Page 87 Agenda Item 9



 
 

Governance 

Corporate governance comprises the rules, practices and processes that direct and control the 

Council. It underpins everything we do, and includes: 

 Systems 

 Processes & Procedures  

 Rules & Laws 

 Management & Leadership 

 Decision Making  

We gain evidence of the effectiveness of the Council’s governance through completion of our 

governance related audits on the audit plan, and also the work we undertake in an advisory or 

consultative capacity. This work includes: 

 Counter Fraud: We consider the risk of fraud in all of our regular audit projects, and our 
audit universe includes relevant policies and procedures aimed at preventing, detecting 
or tackling fraud (such as Officer Declarations, Gifts and Hospitality, and Expenses). 
During 2019/20 we have also supported the Council’s response to the COVID-19 
pandemic by completing counter-fraud checks on a large number of Business Rate grant 
applicants. 

 Whistleblowing (speaking-up): The Committee reviewed and adopted the most recent 
policy in March 2017. The Audit Manager is a named officer in the policy, along with 
Senior Officers and the Chair of the Audit Committee. We received no official disclosures 
through the policy in 2019/20.  The Whistleblowing policy is in the process of being 
reviewed and updated. 

 Ad-hoc advice & Consultancy: Contingency days built into the Plan have been used in 

order to support the Council’s response to COVID-19. Two of the Audit team have been 

supporting Dartford Borough Council in front line services (the Community Hub) to 

ensure vulnerable residents have the food and support needed. 

During 2019/20 we have raised no high priority findings with regards to governance.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 88Agenda Item 9



 
 

Risk Management 

Risk management is a vital element of corporate governance. It is important for the Council not 
only to be aware of key risks, but to also have processes in place to ensure that those risks are 
managed well, and where possible, impact is minimised.  
 
By properly responding to risks the Council will be more likely to make informed decisions and 
achieve its objectives. In addition, effective risk management demonstrates good governance, 
provides greater internal control and due diligence.  
 
Our audit work takes into account strategic and operational risk management, and our testing 
considers the effectiveness of the controls in place to manage those risks to acceptable levels. We 
also have a co-ordination role with regards to the risk management strategy, and will provide 
support, guidance and training across the Council to help improve risk management arrangements.  
 
During 2019/20 we worked with Senior Management Team to agree the priorities in relation to risk 
management, including to devise and agree a new risk management strategy.  We also provided 
Audit Board Members with risk management training.   
  
Our audit work did not identify any individual high risk issues in 2019/20, which indicates that risks 
are being managed. However the overall strategy and risk register does need to be reviewed and 
and refreshed. We will provide assistance in 2020/21 to accomplish this.  

 

  

Page 89 Agenda Item 9



 
 

Compliance with Professional Standards 

The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (the Standards) require the Chief Audit Executive 

(CAE) to develop and maintain a quality assurance and improvement programme (QAIP) which 

includes both internal and external assessments of compliance with the Standards. Oversight of this 

programme is provided by the Audit Board.  

A paper regarding the forthcoming external assessment is presented as a separate agenda item.  

The previous Audit Manager undertook a self-assessment which was reported to Audit Board in the 

previous financial year and presented compliance at 95%. As the new Audit Manager I am unable at 

the present time to confirm my agreement with this. I am in the process of undertaking a full, new 

self- assessment which will be used to inform the EQA.  

Our quality process also includes provision for supervision and review of each audit and regular 

team training.  

The Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme will be reviewed in 2020/21 to ensure that it 

is fit for purpose and meet the team’s needs.  

 

Page 90Agenda Item 9

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/public-sector-internal-audit-standards


 
 

Performance  

These measures have been developed not only to measure performance, but also to monitor quality improvement, compliance with 

Standards, and training & development. These were implemented across the Partnership in December 2018. The figures reported below 

represent the Partnership as a whole, for the period of 01 April 2019 – 31 May 2020: 

 

 

 

P
age 91

A
genda Item

 9



 
 

Acknowledgements  

It has been a significant year for the Audit Partnership, with the focus being on a team restructure and subsequent recruitment and induction. I 

would therefore like to take this opportunity to extend my public thanks to the hard work and resilience demonstrated by the team this year. 

I would also like to thank Officers, Managers and Members for their continued support as we have undertaken our work. In particular, the 

Audit Board whose oversight, assistance and challenge has enabled us to make significant progress in shaping the future of the Partnership.  

 

P
age 92

A
genda Item

 9



 
 

Appendix I 

Definitions of Assurance ratings: 

OPINION DEFINITIONS 

Full Assurance 

(no High or Medium 
priority actions) 

A sound framework of control is in place that meets Council or 
service objectives. All expected controls tested are in place and are 
operating effectively. 

A review with this level of assurance will generally have no actions, 
or very few LOW priority actions. Agreed actions will be followed up 
as they fall due. 

Substantial Assurance 

(no High priority actions) 

There is generally a sound framework of control in place that meets 
Council or service objectives. However, there are isolated 
weaknesses in design of controls, or inconsistent application of 
controls, which puts the achievement of a limited number of 
objectives at risk. 

A review of this level of assurance may raise a number of MEDIUM 
priority actions. Agreed actions will be followed up as they fall due.  

Limited Assurance 

There are weaknesses within the framework of control or evidence 
of non-compliance with Council procedures or good practice, which 
puts the achievement of the Council’s or service objectives in many 
of the areas reviewed at risk. 

A review with this level of assurance will raise one or more HIGH 
priority actions. Actions with a high priority should be acted on as 
soon as practical and will be followed up as soon as they fall due. 

No Assurance 

Key controls are absent from the framework of control. There are 
fundamental weaknesses identified with both the design and 
operation of the system under review. As a result, it is unlikely that 
Council or service objectives will be achieved. 

A review of this level may include a number of HIGH or CRITICAL 
priority actions. Actions of a critical level will be reported as soon as 
they are identified and escalated to the relevant Senior Manager. 
Actions to address the findings will be followed up as soon as they 
fall due.  

   

 

 

Page 93 Agenda Item 9



 
 

Audit Findings Priority Ratings 

Priority  Definition 

Critical 

 Control weakness that could have a significant impact upon not only 
the system, function or process objectives, but also the achievement of 
the organisation’s objectives in relation to: 
• the efficient and effective use of resources 
• the safeguarding of assets  
• the preparation of reliable financial and operational 
 information 
• compliance with laws and regulations 

High 

 Control weakness that has or is likely to have a significant impact upon 
the achievement of key system, function or process objectives. 
This weakness, whilst high impact for the system, function or process 
does not have a significant impact on the achievement of the overall 
organizational objectives. 

Medium 

 Control weakness that has a low impact on the achievement of the key 
system, function or process objectives; or 
This weakness has exposed the system, function or process to a key 
risk, however the likelihood of this risk occurring is low. 

Low 

 Control weakness that does not impact upon the achievement of key 

system, function or process objectives; however implementation of the 

recommendation would improve overall control. 

Advisory 

 Observations and areas for consideration, these findings are drawn 

from our shared experience of working across the Council and more 

widely with partners. These findings require no formal response and 

will not be followed up. 

 
 

Page 94Agenda Item 9



 
AUDIT BOARD 

22 JULY 2020 
 
INTERNAL AUDIT 2020/21 AUDIT PLAN REPORT 
 

1. Summary 
 
1.1 In accordance with Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, Internal Audit is 

required to establish a risk-based plan to determine its priorities and areas 
for review. This report provides the Internal Audit Plan for 2020/21 along 
with details of the audit planning process and the resources necessary to 
deliver the Plan.   

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 That the Internal Audit Plan 2020/21 at Appendix A to the report be approved. 
 

 
3. Background and Discussion 

 
3.1. In accordance with professional standards (Public Sector Internal Audit 

Standards), an audit plan is devised annually setting out the priorities and 
activities to be undertaken. This risk-based plan is aligned to the key risks 
of the Council, corporate priorities and plans, and also considers wider risks 
facing the Sector. The attached report (Appendix A) sets out the audit 
planning process, an assessment of how audit resources will be deployed 
during the year, and details of the audit work to be completed.  

 
3.2. The Board is required through its Terms of Reference to consider and 

approve the plan each year. Updates on the delivery of the plan and 
findings of internal audit work will be reported throughout the year. 

 
4. Internal Audit Resources  

4.1 The report (Appendix A) sets out the audit plan for 2020/21 and details how 
audit resources will be deployed over the course of the year.  

4.2 The Internal Audit Partnership will be the subject of an external quality 
assessment during 2020/21, to determine whether the service is 
conforming to the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. 

5. Relationship to the Corporate Plan 

5.1 Not applicable 
  

Page 95 Agenda Item 10

https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/standards/public-sector-internal-audit-standards


 
AUDIT BOARD 

22 JULY 2020 
 
 

6. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 
assessments 
 

Financial Implications 

The Internal Audit Partnership is responsible for 
delivery of the audit plan. Delivery of the plan is 
already approved within the Council’s budget - as 
such there are no financial implications 
associated with this report.  

Legal Implications This report has no direct legal implications. 

Staffing Implications 
The use of Internal Audit resources are set out in 
the report (Appendix A).  

Administrative 
Implications 

The report has no administrative implications. 

Risk Assessment 
The audit plan is risk-based, and is therefore 
directly aligned to key risks. There are no direct 
risk management implications. 

 
7. Details of Exempt Information Category 

 
7.1 Not applicable 

 
8. Appendices 

 
Appendix A – Internal Audit Plan 2020/21 

 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 

Documents consulted Date Report Author 
Section & 

Directorate 

Exempt 
Information 
Category 

 

Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards  
 

March 
2017 
 
 

Interim Audit 
Manager 
01322 343116 

Internal Audit 
Partnership 
 
& 
 
Strategic Director 
(Internal Services) 
 

N/A 

 

Page 96Agenda Item 10

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/public-sector-internal-audit-standards
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/public-sector-internal-audit-standards


 

 

 

 

 

 

Internal Audit Plan 

2020/21 

 

 

Dartford 

 

 

 

 
 

Page 97 Agenda Item 10



Introduction 

All local authorities must make proper provision for internal audit in line with the Local Audit and 

Accountability Act 2014 and the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 (regulation 5). The latter requires 

authorities to:  

“…undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, 

control and governance processes, taking into account public sector internal auditing 

standards or guidance.” 

The Regulations state that services must follow the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards – which are 

mandated across the whole of the public sector. They are an expansion of international standards by HM 

Government, adding elements specific to the UK Public Sector. The ‘Standards’ form part of the wider 

mandatory elements of the International Professional Practices Framework (IPPF) which is applicable to all 

UK Local Authorities. 

The Standards mandate the mission of internal audit: to enhance and protect organisational value by 

providing risk-based and objective assurance, advice and insight. We achieve this by bringing a systematic 

and disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk management, control and 

governance for the Council. 

In order to ensure that we work in accordance with the Standards and deliver on our mission we have an 

Internal Audit Charter. The Charter sets out our purpose, authority and responsibility as an internal audit 

service for Dartford Borough Council.  

The Standards also set out the requirements over the audit plan. Specifically standard 2010: 

 

In accordance with that requirement, this report sets out the internal audit plan, it provides Members with 

a summary of the steps taken to develop, identify, assess and formulate the Audit Plan for 2020/21 and 

beyond, in addition to providing details of the audit activities and allocation of resources for the year.  

 

 

Page 98Agenda Item 10

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2014/2/contents/enacted
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2014/2/contents/enacted
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2015/234/pdfs/uksi_20150234_en.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/641252/PSAIS_1_April_2017.pdf


Risk Based Planning  

The Standards require that we apply a risk-based approach to our audit plan. In compiling the Plan 

therefore, we need to be aware of and consider the risks directly facing the Council, in addition to the 

wider sector and economic risks. We then need to apply our own risk assessment that includes the internal 

audit judgement, and the Council’s own assessment.  

We undertook a full risk based planning exercise this year between September 2019 and March 2020 to 

identify the main auditable areas across the Council. The illustration below sets out this process:  

 

We applied a risk assessment to each of the audit areas identified. This assessment takes into 

consideration the following criteria: 

 History: Audit work undertaken in previous years and the overall conclusions 

 Frequency: The length of time since we last conducted work in the area 

 Finance: The level of materiality to the Council budget 

 Regulatory: The legal, statutory or regulatory framework for the area  

 Priorities: Links with the Council strategy and corporate plan  

 Inclusion: Whether it is an area of regular audit attention 

 Change / Environment: The stability of the operating environment  

 

Page 99 Agenda Item 10



Members will note however that this detailed planning process was undertaken prior to the Covid-19 

pandemic which has significantly altered the risk landscape for all local government authorities. The 

pandemic also impacted the resources available to Internal Audit as some in-house staff were redeployed 

and contractors were furloughed.  As a result, the first draft Internal Audit Plan was reviewed and updated 

in June 2020 in consultation with Senior Management.  

Global and Sector Risk 

In drawing together the audit plan, we also need to consider global and sector risks. This includes updates 

provided by relevant professional bodies, such as CIPFA.  We also consult with our internal audit colleagues 

through groups such as the London and Kent Audit Groups and through the review of published audit plans 

from other Councils in the South East. 

These sources give us further insight into the key issues facing local government and how other audit 

teams are responding to them.  We have also considered the Risk in Focus publication from the Institute of 

Internal Auditors. The table below sets out the main risks identified through this research: 

Hot Topics Audit Partnership Response 

IT Governance We have included an audit of Cyber Security on the 2020/21 audit plan 

Post-GDPR Data Protection We undertook a review of GDPR in 2018-19 

Sustainability: Environment & Social 
Ethics 

We have included audit work on the Local Air Quality Management plans 
for 2020/21 

Bribery & Corruption Compliance 
Our work in 2020/21 will aim to strengthen governance arrangements. In 
particular the Counter Fraud Risk Assessment and counter fraud policies 

Communication: Brand and 
Reputation 

Our audit work will include consideration of reputational risks where 
applicable 

Workplace Culture 
We are completing a review against the Corporate Governance Code in 
2019/20 which will include workplace culture 

Risk Management & Governance 
Our work in 2020/21 will aim to strengthen governance arrangements. In 
particular the Corporate Project Governance assessment and input into 
the risk management framework   

COVID-19 
Our audit work during 2020/21 will assist the Council in its response to 
COVID-19. 

Given the scale of the exercise and the number of audit areas resulting from the consultations and risk 

assessment exercise, we have drawn together the 2020/21 audit plan based on risk / priority areas. 

However, our audit planning process is continuous and as we work through the year the risk assessments 

will be enhanced and updated, which could lead to in-year revisions to the audit plan. 

  

Page 100Agenda Item 10

https://www.google.com/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=2&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwi_5LaAgfDgAhXs1uAKHaMVDw4QFjABegQICBAC&url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.iia.org.uk%2Fmedia%2F1689824%2Frisk-in-focus-2019.pdf&usg=AOvVaw0D8bbMS-xPwexiAqxclzg-


Resources  

The Partnership consists of 5.8 FTE, plus 0.5 admin support. To calculate the total amount of resources 

available we take the total available days and subtract non-working and non-audit time. This enables us to 

ensure that we factor in the ongoing support and development of the service, in addition to the 

administrative demands of the role. We have also factored into our projection, the redeployment of audit 

resources during the pandemic and an allowance for the vacant Lead Auditor post.  The table below 

provides a summary of the total available days for 2020/21: 

Activity 

Dartford Sevenoaks 

19/20 20/21 19/20 20/21 

Risk Management 10 10 10 10 

Counter Fraud 5 5 5 5 

Member Support / Training / Meetings 10 10 10 10 

Follow-Up 15 15 15 15 

Audit Planning 10 10 10 10 

Advisory & Consultancy 50 100 74 100 

External Quality Assessment 0 10 0 10 

Total non-audit 100 160 124 160 

  

Available for audits/projects 325 215 301 215 

  

Total Days 425 375 425 375 

 

Due to the impact of COVID-19 and the redeployment of audit resources during the pandemic, the 

Partnership has access to 750 chargeable audit days for 2020/21.  These days are split 50/50 for Sevenoaks 

and Dartford.  We are able to ensure flexibility in how those days are deployed depending on the demand 

from each partner. The table above shows the allocation of the 375 audit days for Dartford. 

 

  

Page 101 Agenda Item 10



Audit Standards require us to assess whether the resources available are sufficient to fulfil the audit needs 

of the Council each year. In order to make this judgement, we consider: 

 Whether we had sufficient resource to complete our prior year plan 

o The 2019/20 audit plan has not been fully achieved, as reported separately as part of 

our Annual Opinion. This was partially due to a team restructure and partially due to the 

impact of the pandemic with permanent staff redeployed and contractors furloughed. 

Where 2019/20 audits remain relevant but have not been completed, they have been 

carried forward into 2020/21.  

 Whether the size and complexity of the organisation has changed over the last year 

o There has been no change in the size or complexity of the organisation over the last 

year.  However, the Council has experienced significant changes to service delivery since 

January 2020, as result of COVID-19.  In order to counter this, our resource calculation 

for 2020/21 includes a larger audit budget for ‘advisory & consultancy’, which we will 

use to further assist the Council’s response to the pandemic including ongoing post-

payment checks on business grants.   

 Whether the organisation’s appetite for risk has changed  

o The Council continues to pursue its corporate priorities, and commitment to deliver key 

strategic projects. 

 If there have been any significant changes to the control environment, taking into account 

audit opinions and responses to audit findings 

o All of our assurance opinions in 2019/20 have been ‘Substantial’ or higher. 

 Whether there have been significant changes to professional standards 

o There have been no significant updates to the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards.  

Based on the criteria above, we believe we have sufficient resources to deliver the 2020/21 plan however 

we recognise that, especially in the current climate, there will be a need to continually review the 

assumptions we have made, the available resources and the Council’s priorities.  

As a result, we have prioritised the Internal Audit Plan to create a Plan A and a Plan B. Plan A consists of 

the core areas for completion; Plan B consists of additional areas that will be completed if resources allow.  

  

Page 102Agenda Item 10



Audit Plan 2020/21 

The outcomes of our audit projects are concluded in one of two ways, those that lead us to issue an assurance rating and those that do not.  Members will be 

familiar with our assurance ratings, and we have kept them the same for 2020/21. We recognise that Internal Audit resources may be used to provide a 

supporting role on developing projects, or through providing advice and insight. In these circumstances, an assurance rating is not provided. However, we do 

issue reports for this type of work and will continue to provide summaries in our reporting to Members. 

The table below sets out our audit plan for 2020/21.   The audit plan is split up into two main parts – ‘Plan A’ and ‘Plan B’.  Audit Plan A will be the main focus 

of our audit resources during 2020/21 as these cover the highest priority and risk scoring audits.  Plan B audits are additions to the core plan and will be 

completed if audits are removed or delayed from Plan A. 

We have categorised our work into 4 types of assurance: 

 Finance: Those areas that present a material impact on the Council budget 

 Governance: Areas that sit in the corporate centre, such as laws and regulations  

 Risk-Based: Operationally focussed work that looks at how effective controls are at managing key service risks 

 Consultancy: Client requested project work to provide support and added value to a service area 

The plan also includes a short description of the objective of the work.  The scope and individual budget for each project will be confirmed and agreed at the 

planning stage. The work will be undertaken in accordance with our agreed audit process, and our quality assurance and improvement programme. Our 

performance will also be measured using our agreed performance indicators. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 103

A
genda Item

 10



AUDIT PLAN A: 

 Service Area Audit Title Scope Project Type 
Assurance 

Rated? 

1 
Information 
Technology 
(ICT) 

Cyber Security 
Cyber Security – excluding patch management  

Compliance  

2 
Estate 
Management  

Rent Collection / Rent 
Arrears (Current Tenants) 

To assess the adequacy of controls over the receipt and banking of rent income.  

To consider the position over current tenant arrears following the impact of 

Universal Credit. 

Finance  

3 Waste Services 
Waste Contract 
Collection 

To review processes for the termination of the old contract and establish 

whether issues have been resolved.  

To review and assess the adequacy of contract oversight (new contract). 

Risk-based 

4 Waste Services Street Cleansing 

To review and assess the adequacy of contract oversight (fly-tipping).  

To consider the arrangements over fly-tipping prevention activities. 
Risk-based 

5 
Housing 
Maintenance 

Reactive Repairs 
To assess the adequacy of controls over reactive repairs (reporting, allocating 

and completing reactive repairs, including post-work inspections). Risk-based 

6 Housing 

New Build Capital 
Programme 

To review the effectiveness of controls over the monitoring of spend and 

delivery of the programme. 
Finance 



      

7 
Financial 
Services 

Budget Setting 
To review the effectiveness of controls over the budget setting process. 

Finance  

8 
Financial 
Services 

Feeder Systems and 
Journals 

Full systems based audit to map the system, identify key controls and risks, and 

test effectiveness of controls. Finance  

9 
Strategic 
Director 

Fraud Risk Review 
Assessment against Fighting Fraud and Corruption Locally checklist. 

Governance x 

P
age 104

A
genda Item

 10



(Internal 
Services) 

10 
Development 
Management  

Planning: Administration 
and Fees 

To assess the effectiveness of controls over the receipt and validation of 

planning applications.  

To determine whether all fees due from planning applications are received and 

fully accounted for. 

Risk-based  

11 
Housing 
Solutions 

Housing Allocations 
Policy 

To review compliance with the Housing Allocations Policy. 
Risk-based  

12 
Project 
Delivery 

Corporate Project 
Governance 

Project governance health check for corporate projects. 
Governance x 

13 
Development 
Management 

Planning Enforcement 
To review the process for creating, documenting and executing planning control 

notices. Risk-based  

14 
Environmental 
Health 
Partnership 

Air Quality Management 
To document and review the processes and controls in place to collect, monitor 

and report air quality data. Risk-based 

15 
Financial 
Management 

Contract Management 
To establish how the Council ensure that contracting managers are effectively 

managing contracts. Risk-based 

16 
Enforcement 
and Regulatory 

Dartford Town Against 
Crime (DTAC) 

To review operation of the service and rollout of Community Protection 

Warnings. Risk-based 

17 
Information 
Technology 

Service Desk (IT Support) 
To document and review the controls in place for managing service desk 

enquiries (including reporting, allocating, completing and closing requests). Risk-based  

18 
Customer 
Services 

Facilities Management 

To establish and evaluate the controls over building security.  

To review arrangements over the Council's internal CCTV system. 
Risk-based  

19 

Strategic 
Director 
(Internal 
Services) 

Counter Fraud Policy 
Work 

To review and update the Whistleblowing and Anti-Fraud and Corruption 

Policies. Governance x 

P
age 105

A
genda Item

 10



20 Corporate 
Covid 19 – Lessons 
Learned 

To review the Council's arrangements in response to COVID-19. This will include 

expenditure and changes to expected income. Consultancy x 

21 Corporate  Covid 19 – Recovery 
To review the Council’s recovery plans. 

Consultancy x 

 

 

  

P
age 106

A
genda Item

 10



AUDIT PLAN B: 

 Service Area Audit Title Scope Project Type 
Assurance 

Rated? 

21 
Revenues & 

Benefits 

Revenues & Benefits 
Shared Service Review 

Evaluation of service performance, against the Revenues & Benefits partnership 

agreement / restructure business case 
Risk-based 

 

22 HR Policy Recruitment 
To review and assess the effectiveness of the Council's recruitment processes in 

accordance with regulations. Risk-based  

23 

Revenues 
and Benefits 
shared 
service 

Housing Benefit 
Systems mapping of Housing Benefits process / system. 

Finance 

24 
Housing 
Solutions 

Homelessness 
Prevention 

To establish whether the Council's homelessness prevention activities provide 

value for money. Consultancy x

25 
Enforcement 
and 
Regulatory 

Emergency Planning 
To verify whether the Council is satisfying its statutory obligations for 

emergency planning. Risk-based 

26 
Enforcement 
and 
Regulatory 

Environmental 
Enforcement 

To review and assess the adequacy of contract oversight (since expansion of the 

contract).  

To establish and evaluate the controls over enforcement processes (legal 

proceedings). 

Risk-based 

27 
Human 
Resources 

Employee Induction 
To review the Council's induction process. 

Advisory x

28 
Policy and 
Performance 

Project Management 
Framework 

To review a sample of projects undertaken across the Council to identify 

consistencies against best practice. Governance x

29 
Customer 
Services 

CRM System 
To document and evaluate the effectiveness of controls over the CRM System 

to log and maintain customer requests. Risk-based 

P
age 107

A
genda Item

 10



30 
Events and 
Leisure 

Markets 
To assess the effectiveness of controls over the receipt and banking of market 

traders income.  

31 
Revenues & 
Benefits 

KCC Funding Agreement 
– Fraud & Error 

 Compliance with the KCC’s funding agreement Risk-based 

32 

Internal 
Services 

Shared Services - Value 
for Money Review 

 To determine whether DBC is getting optimum value for money from 
shared services 

Consultancy X

     

 

 

 

 

 

  

P
age 108

A
genda Item

 10



  

Page 109 Agenda Item 10



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 110



 
AUDIT BOARD 

22 JULY 2020 
 
INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER (July 2020) 
 

1. Summary 
 
1.1. The Audit Charter (Appendix A) sets out the purpose, authority and 

responsibility of the Internal Audit Service. The Charter includes those 
safeguards that are necessary to protect Internal Audit’s objectivity and 
independence and provides an overview of governance arrangements. 
 

2. RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1 That the Internal Audit Charter (Appendix A) is approved. 

 

 
3. Background and Discussion 
 

3.1 As those charged with governance and oversight of the Internal Audit 
service, the Audit Board is required through its Terms of Reference to 
consider and approve the Charter.  

The Internal Audit Charter is a requirement of the Public Sector Internal 
Audit Standards (PSIAS). It is a key governance document that sets 
out the purpose, authority, and responsibility of Internal Audit. In 
addition, the Charter reinforces the ‘mission’ of Internal Audit as a service 
that provides vital assurance, insight and improvement to the Council. 
The Audit Board last considered and approved the Internal Audit Charter 
in March 2019.  

4. Internal Audit Resources  

4.1 Effective governance of the Partnership is vital to ensure delivery of an 
effective audit service. The work undertaken by the Partnership is 
approved within the Council’s budget and so there are no resource 
implications identified as part of this decision. 

5. Relationship to the Corporate Plan 

5.1 Not applicable 
 
 
  

Page 111 Agenda Item 11

https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/standards/public-sector-internal-audit-standards
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/standards/public-sector-internal-audit-standards


 
AUDIT BOARD 

22 JULY 2020 
 

6. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 
assessments 
 

Financial Implications There are no financial implications associated 
with this decision.  

Legal Implications 
The Account and Audit Regulations 2015 require 
an organisation to “undertake an effective 
internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its 
risk management, control and governance 
processes, taking into account public sector 
internal auditing standards or guidance”. The 
Charter is a key governance document under 
these standards.  

Staffing Implications There are no staffing implications associated 
with this decision. 

Administrative 
Implications 

There are no administrative implications 
associated with this decision. 

Risk Assessment 
If a Charter is not maintained and approved, 
there is a risk that the remit and authority of 
Internal Audit within the organisation becomes 
unclear, meaning that it is unable to deliver an 
effective service.  

 
7. Details of Exempt Information Category 

 
7.1 Not applicable 
 

8. Appendices 
 

Appendix A – Internal Audit Charter – July 2020 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Documents consulted Date Report Author 
Section & 

Directorate 

Exempt 
Information 
Category 

 

The previous Charter was 
reported to the Audit Board 
in March 2019 and is 
publically available on the 
Council’s website.  

 

27/3/19 
 
 

Interim Audit 
Manager 
01322 343116 

Internal Audit 
Partnership 
 
& 
 
Strategic Director 
(Internal Services) 
 

N/A 

 

Page 112Agenda Item 11

http://committeedmz.dartford.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=286&MId=2741&Ver=4


 

 
 

Internal Audit  

Charter 
 

JULY 2020 
 

 

                                                                                                                                                                                        

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 113 Agenda Item 11



 

1 
 

 

Internal Audit Charter 

2020/21  

Introduction 

The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards provide a consolidated approach to internal auditing standards across 

the whole of public sector. They are an expansion of international standards by HM Government, adding elements 

specific to the UK public Sector. The ‘Standards’ form part of the wider mandatory (1010) elements of the International 

Professional Practices Framework (IPPF) which is applicable to all UK Local Authorities: 

 

The Standards require Internal Audit to implement and maintain an Internal Audit Charter (1000). The Charter defines 

formally the purpose, authority and responsibility of Internal Audit. 

Mission & Core Principles  

The IPPF’s overarching mandated Mission for internal audit services is: ‘to enhance and protect organisational value 
by providing risk-based and objective assurance, advice and insight.’  The ‘Core principles’ that underpin delivery of 
the IPPF mission require internal audit functions to:  

 Demonstrate integrity;  

 Demonstrate competence & due professional care;  

 Be objective and free from undue influence (independent);  

 Align with the strategies, objectives and risks of the organisation;  

 Be appropriately positioned and adequately resourced;  

 Demonstrate quality and continuous improvement;  

 Communicate effectively;  

 Provide risk-based assurance;  

 Be insightful, proactive, and future-focused; and  

 Promote organisational improvement  

 

 

 

 

Definition of Internal 

Auditing: 

‘An independent, objective assurance 

and consulting activity designed to add 

value and improve an organisation’s 

operations. It helps an organisation 

accomplish its objectives by bringing a 

systematic, disciplined approach to 

evaluate and improve the effectiveness 

of risk management, control and 

governance processes’ 
(PSIAS March 2017) 

Page 114Agenda Item 11

https://www.google.com/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=1&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwjbr-nhsqPdAhWMK8AKHZYhCnQQFjAAegQIABAB&url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.cipfa.org%2Fpolicy-and-guidance%2Fstandards%2Fpublic-sector-internal-audit-standards&usg=AOvVaw2ctuQ9SIXi1Py5w02rCb0b


 

2 
 

 

Internal Audit Charter 

2020/21  

Authority (1000) 

All local authorities must make proper provision for internal audit in line with the Local Audit and Accountability Act 
2014 and the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 (regulation 5). The latter requires authorities to:  

“…undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, control and 

governance processes, taking into account public sector internal auditing standards or guidance.” 

Deriving authority from those Regulations and those authorising this Charter, Internal Audit is free to plan and 
undertake any audit work necessary to fulfil its scope (1110.A1) (the scope of the service is covered later in this 
document). To enable full discharge of its duties, Internal Audit: 

 Has a right of direct access to the Chair of the Audit Committee and Chief Executive (1110 PSR & 1111); 

 Has free and unrestricted access to all services, records (including those held electronically), property and 
personnel (Members, officers and third parties including contractors) that it deems necessary in order to 
undertake its work. 

Purpose (1000) 

Internal audit is a vital component to the Council’s effective running, and will provide assurance, advice and insight 
to help protect and enhance the internal control, governance and risk management arrangements. The role of 
internal auditing has a mandatory definition within the Standards, as: 
  
‘an independent, objective assurance and consulting activity designed to add value and improve an organisation’s 

operations. It helps an organisation accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to 

evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk management, control and governance processes’ 

The service has a wider role to be the Council’s ‘critical friend’, able to confidently challenge current practice, 
champion best practice and support management in improvement. This is achieved through internal audit providing 
assurance and consulting activities.  

Responsibility (1000)  

Responsibility for maintaining an effective system of internal audit within Dartford Borough Council lies with the 
Strategic Director (Internal Services).  
 
Provision of the internal audit service is through the Dartford and Sevenoaks Internal Audit Partnership, a shared 
service of audit professionals. The role of Chief Audit Executive (CAE) is fulfilled by the Audit Manager, who is 
responsible for managing the internal audit service in accordance with the IPPF and arrangements as set out in this 
Charter.  
 
For the purposes of this Charter the following definitions apply: 

 The Board: Those charged with governance. For Dartford this role is fulfilled by the Audit Board. The Board is 

responsible for approving the Charter and Audit Plan, and has oversight of the external assessment process.   

The Board will receive progress updates including the results of work undertaken and outcomes of the 

Quality Assurance Improvement Programme (defined later in this document). 

 Senior Management: Those responsible for executive leadership and direction. For Dartford this role is 

fulfilled by the Senior Management Team. Senior Management is engaged in approving the Charter, reviews 

and comments on the Audit Plan, and will receive the results of internal audit work as set out in the scope of 

this Charter.  

Page 115 Agenda Item 11

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2014/2/contents/enacted
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2014/2/contents/enacted


 

3 
 

 

Internal Audit Charter 

2020/21  

The Audit Manager reports functionally to the Audit Board, and, with respect to activities undertaken at Dartford, 

reports administratively to the Strategic Director (Internal Services).  

Independence & objectivity (1100) 

Internal Audit will remain free from undue interference in determining the scope and nature of its work and 
communicating its results. The Audit Manager will consider independence and objectivity as part of each audit and 
will confirm independence and objectivity at least annually to the Audit Board.   

Auditors must maintain ‘an unbiased attitude that allows them to perform their engagements in such a manner that 
they believe in their work product and that no quality compromises are made’ (PSIAS March 2017). Maintaining objectivity 
requires auditors to be impartial and to avoid conflicts of interests that may otherwise impact on their professional 
judgement.  

To achieve the degree of independence and objectivity necessary to effectively discharge its responsibilities, 
arrangements are in place to ensure the internal audit activity:  

 Is not authorised to perform executive or operational responsibilities  

 Cannot initiate or approve accounting transactions (outside of administration of the service) 

 Cannot direct the activities of any Council employee (outside of administration of the service) 

 Has the freedom and authority to report in its own name  

 Recognises and addresses potential conflicts of interest through internal audit staff not undertaking an audit 
for at least 1 year in an area where they have had previous operational roles (1130.A1) and through adherence 
to the Council’s declaration of interest processes 

If independence or objectivity is impaired in fact or appearance, the details of the impairment will be disclosed to 

‘Senior Management’ and ‘the Board’.  

Due Professional Care (1200) 

Internal auditors will perform work with due professional care, competence and diligence. Internal auditors cannot 
be expected to identify every control weakness or irregularity but their work is designed to enable them to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the controls examined within the scope of their review.  

Internal auditors have a duty to develop and maintain their professional skills, knowledge and judgement based on 
appropriate training, ability, integrity and objectivity. Internal auditors will appraise themselves of the ‘Mission’, 
‘Core Principles’, ‘Definition of Internal Auditing’, the ‘Code of Ethics’ and the ‘Standards’ and will work in 
accordance with them in the conduct of their duties.  

Internal auditors will be alert to the possibility of intentional wrongdoing, errors and omissions, poor value for 
money, failure to comply with management policy and conflicts of interest. They have a direct, personal 
responsibility to report any suspicions of fraud, corruption or improper conduct to the Audit Manager in accordance 
with agreed procedures.  

Internal auditors will treat the information they receive in carrying out their duties as confidential. There will be no 

unauthorised disclosure of information unless there is a legal or professional requirement to do so. Confidential 

information gained in the course of internal audit work will not be used for personal gain, and will be managed in 

accordance with data protection and relevant information governance policies.  

  

Page 116Agenda Item 11



 

4 
 

 

Internal Audit Charter 

2020/21  

Scope of Internal Audit Activities 

Assurance 

Internal Audit work includes tasks that support the annual Audit Opinion. This assurance work covers three areas: 

 Internal Control: The process for assuring achievement of the Council’s objectives in operational 
effectiveness and efficiency, reliable financial reporting and compliance with laws, regulations and policies. It 
incorporates both financial and non-financial systems. 

 Corporate Governance: The system of rules, practices and processes by which the Council is directed and 
controlled. 

 Risk Management: The process of identifying, quantifying and managing the risks that the Council faces in 
attempting to achieve its objectives. 

In addition to those three core areas Internal Audit may, subject to specific arrangements, undertake engagements 
in the areas of non-audit work, counter fraud and operational risk management as detailed in this Charter. 

Internal Audit Plan (2010) 

The Audit Manager produces an Annual Risk Based Internal Audit Plan to determine the priorities of the internal 
audit activity. The plan is developed in consultation with management, taking into account of the Council’s priorities, 
objectives, risk management framework and internal audits own judgement of risks.  
 
Senior Management Team is consulted on the Annual Risk Based Internal Audit Plan, which details internal audit 
activities for the forthcoming year. The plan is reported to the Audit Board for approval.  

A resource assessment will be conducted each year by the Audit Manager as part of the risk based audit plan to 
ensure that the resources needed to achieve that plan are appropriate, sufficient, and can be effectively deployed 
(2030). The Audit Manager is responsible for delivery of the plan and providing updates of progress throughout the 
year.  
 

Non Audit Work  

Consultancy (1000) 

Internal Audit resource may sometimes be more usefully focused towards providing advice and consultancy rather 
than assurance. Consultancy (such as advice, guidance and training) are activities undertaken by internal audit that 
are intended to add value and improve governance, risk management and control processes. 

As such, the Standards allow for consultancy work to be completed, providing that safeguards are in place to 
manage any potential or perceived impairment to independence and objectivity (1112 PSR). For Dartford non-audit work 
may be commissioned providing that: 

 The nature, objective and scope are defined and agreed 

 The request has been approved by a member of the Senior Management Team 

 The service has the right skills, experience and available resource, and 

 Internal Audit involvement does not constitute a conflict of interest and will not involve assuming a 
management role 

The Audit Manager is responsible for ensuring all requests are reviewed in accordance with the above criteria before 
making the final decision. With respect to significant requests, defined as those which require the purchase of 
additional resources or amendment to the agreed audit plan, the Audit Manager will seek approval from the Chair of 
the Audit Board and the Strategic Director – Internal Services.  

Page 117 Agenda Item 11



 

5 
 

 

Internal Audit Charter 

2020/21  

Summaries of consultancy engagements will be communicated to the Board as part of the regular reporting of 
internal audit activities.  

Risk Management  

Internal Audit provides a strategic advisory role for risk management which may include developing the risk 
management strategy with Management Team. This role, along with providing training and advice / coaching are all 
roles that are legitimate internal audit roles as defined by the IIA’s position paper on The Role of Internal Auditing in 
Enterprise-Wide Risk Management. In taking these roles, the following safeguards to independence are in place: 

 Internal separation of duties between the officers co-ordinating risk management and those undertaking 
audits 

 Overall responsibility for the risk management sits with Senior Management Team and the Audit Board, and 
risk management is reported as a separate function to the internal audit service  

 Resource to provide risk management services is made available and reported in the audit plan, agreed by 
the Audit Board 

 Internal Audit do not set the risk appetite for the Council, or take operational responsibility for risk actions  

 Any review or internal audit of the effectiveness of the risk management process will be undertaken 
independently from outside of the audit partnership. This enables independent assurance to be provided to 
the Board 

Counter Fraud 

The role of internal audit with regards to Counter Fraud is set out in the Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy. 
Internal audit may assist or lead in the identification and investigation of suspected internal fraudulent activity. This 
may include referrals through the Council’s Whistleblowing Policy, the National Fraud Initiative, or matters 
identified during the course of internal audit work. Internal Audit also maintains the Whistleblowing policy and 
operates the whistleblowing helpline and email addresses. Such investigations and responsibilities present a 
potential impairment to independence. Should assurance on these activities be required, it will be commissioned 
from a third party.  The outcomes of counter fraud work are communicated to Senior Management and the Audit 
Board where appropriate to do so. 

Management Responsibilities  

To be effective, the Internal Audit service requires full co-operation of senior management. In approval of this 
Charter, the Audit Board and the Strategic Director – Internal Services direct management to co-operate with the 
Internal Audit service in the delivery of their work. This includes, but is not limited to, engagement in the planning 
process for individual audits, acting as audit sponsors, providing access to appropriate records, personnel and 
systems, responding to draft reports and implementing audit actions in line with agreed timescales. 

Senior management will also update the Audit Manager of significant proposed changes to processes, systems, 
organisational structure, newly identified significant risks and cases of suspected or detected fraud, corruption or 
impropriety. 

Senior management will also ensure that the Internal Audit service has sufficient resources to fulfil the Risk Based 
Internal Audit Plan as agreed by the Audit Board.  

 

 
 
 

Page 118Agenda Item 11

https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/national-fraud-initiative


 

6 
 

 

Internal Audit Charter 

2020/21  

Reporting (2400) 

The Audit Manager will deliver an annual opinion (2450) a report that can be used by the organisation to inform its 
Annual Governance Statement. The audit opinion will conclude on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the 
organisation’s framework of internal controls, governance and risk management. The annual report will incorporate 
as a minimum:  

 The scope including the time period covered for the opinion  

 Scope limitations   

 Consideration of all related projects including the reliance on other assurance providers   

 A summary of the information that supports the opinion   

 The risk or control framework or other criteria used as a basis for the overall opinion   

 The overall opinion, judgment or conclusion reached 

 A statement on conformance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, the independence of the 
service, and the results of the Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme.   

Internal audit will communicate the results of audit reviews, consultancy engagements, and updates on the 
performance of the internal audit activity to Senior Management and the Audit Committee.  
 

Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme (1300)  

The audit partnership has a quality assurance programme that covers internal and external assessments.  

Internal assessments (1311): The Partnership conducts an annual self-assessment against the Standards and has an 
action plan in place to ensure areas of non-compliance are improved. Audit Management review and sign-off all 
stages of the audit process to ensure scope, fieldwork and conclusion of the work is consistent with the Standards.  

External assessment (1312): The Partnership had an External Quality Assessment in 2015 and a follow-up in 2017. 
Results and subsequent follow-up actions were reported to the Audit Committee. A new full external quality 
assessment is due to be completed by an independent body in 2020/21. 

Review  

The Charter will be reviewed annually and any changes reported to the Audit Committee for approval.  

The Audit Manager will disclose any areas of non-conformance (1322) with the Code of Ethics or the Standards, 
including the impacts on the overall scope or operation of the internal audit activity to senior management and the 
Audit Committee if identified. 

The Charter is authorised within Dartford Borough Council with the agreement of the Chairman of the Audit Board 
and Strategic Director – Internal Services.  

Agreed by Audit Board: July 2020 

Page 119 Agenda Item 11



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 120



 
AUDIT BOARD 

22 JULY 2020 
 
PUBLIC SECTOR INTERNAL AUDIT STANDARDS – EXTERNAL QUALITY 
ASSESSMENT PROCUREMENT 
 

1. Summary 
 
1.1 The attached report provides Members with an update on the intention of 

procuring an external quality assessment (EQA) in the 2020/21 financial year, 
via a self-assessment validation exercise, in order to satisfy the requirements 
set out by the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (Standards).  
 

2. RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1 That the decision to procure an external quality assessment via a self-

assessment validation, as set out in Appendix A to the report, be noted.  
 

 
3. Background and Discussion 
 

The Standards require the Internal Audit function to be externally assessed by 
an independent and competent assessor on at least a five yearly basis.  The 
last EQA exercise for the Dartford & Sevenoaks Audit Partnership was 
completed in November 2015 and the next is therefore due.   

4.   Relationship to the Corporate Plan 
 
Not applicable 
 

5. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 
assessments 
 

Financial Implications The cost of procuring an external assessment 
through a self-assessment validation exercise 
will be in the region of £5,000 - £10,000. 
 

Legal Implications Under the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, 
Internal Audit must operate with due regard to 
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. Five 
yearly External Quality Assessments are a 
requirement of these standards. 

Staffing Implications Staff resources will need to be deployed to 
complete the external quality assessment self-
assessment.  A resource budget has been 
included in the 2020/21 audit plan available days 
budget.  

Administrative 
Implications 

There are no direct administrative implications 
associated with this decision.  

Page 121 Agenda Item 12



 
AUDIT BOARD 

22 JULY 2020 
 

Risk Assessment If an EQA is not completed, there is a risk that 
Internal Audit is not operating effectively or in 
accordance with professional standards. 

 
6. Details of Exempt Information Category 

 
Not applicable 
 

7. Appendices 
 
Appendix A – External Quality Assessment Procurement FINAL Report (22 
July 2020) 

 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 

Documents consulted Date Report Author 
Section & 

Directorate 

Exempt 
Information 
Category 

 

Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards (March 2017) 
 

March 
2017 
 
 

Interim Audit 
Manager 
01322 343116 

Internal Audit 
Partnership 
 
& 
 
Strategic Director 
(Internal Services) 
 

N/A 

 

Page 122Agenda Item 12

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/public-sector-internal-audit-standards
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/public-sector-internal-audit-standards


0 
 

 

 

Public Sector Internal 

Audit Standards -  

External Quality 

Assessment 

 
22 July 2020 

Page 123 Agenda Item 12



1 
 

Introduction 

The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (the Standards) require the Chief Audit Executive 

(CAE) to develop and maintain a quality assurance and improvement programme (QAIP).  

This programme must include both internal and external assessments.  The purpose of these 

assessments is to confirm compliance with the Standards and to provide assurance to all 

stakeholders that the Internal Audit function is operating efficiently and effectively. 

The Standards stipulate that an external assessment must be completed every five years as 

a minimum.  

The last external quality assessment (EQA) of the Dartford and Sevenoaks Audit Partnership 

was completed in November 2015 and therefore the next should be completed by 

November 2020 in order to maintain compliance. 

In light of the Covid-19 pandemic, the Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA) has indicated that 

there will be some reasonable leeway on timescales but has also highlighted the importance 

of an EQA to ensure that the Internal Audit function makes an effective contribution to the 

overall governance of the organisation.   

It is therefore proposed to continue with our plans to procure and complete an EQA in the 

current financial year.  

Purpose 

The purpose of this report is to provide Members with an overview of the requirements set 

out in the Standards in relation to the EQA and to seek Members’ agreement to the planned 

approach. 

The Standards 

The Standards comprise various elements which Internal Audit functions must adhere to in 

order to be assessed as operating in compliance with the PSIAS. These include: 

- Code of Ethics 

- Attribute Standards - purpose, authority & responsibility, independence & objectivity 

and quality assurance and improvement programme 

- Performance Standards – managing the audit activity, audit planning, performing audit 

engagements, audit reporting and monitoring implementation of agreed actions. 

  

Page 124Agenda Item 12

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/public-sector-internal-audit-standards


2 
 

The Standards require the CAE to discuss the format of the external assessment with Audit 

Committee / Audit Board and encourage their oversight of the process. This minimises any 

perceived or actual conflict of interest for the CAE. 

The assessment should be undertaken by an independent and competent person to avoid 

any conflict of interest and impairment to objectivity. The assessor should be appropriately 

qualified to carry out the assessment. “Appropriately qualified” means both in the practice 

of internal audit and the EQA process.  

Options 

The following table sets out an overview of the two main options available for the EQA.  The 

table also includes the estimated costs, the advantages of each option and other factors to 

consider: 

 FULL ASSESSMENT 
 

VALIDATION OF SELF-ASSESSMENT 

Details A full independent assessment 
of the Internal Audit function 
against the Standards. 

The Audit Manager would complete a full 
self-assessment against the Standards which 
would then be validated by an external 
assessor, including review of supporting 
evidence, audit files and stakeholder 
interviews.  

Estimated cost £20,000 £5,000 - £10,000 

Advantages Full and independent 
compliance check against the 
Standards. 
 
Less resource-intensive in the 
early stages for the IA Team.  
 
The assessor may be more able 
to share best practice from 
other organisations.  
 
 

The whole team could contribute to the self 
assessment, encouraging ownership of 
quality and opportunities for personal 
development.  
 
Opportunity to remedy gaps in the self-
assessment at an early interval and create an 
early action plan.  
 
Budget savings.  

Considerations Budget capacity. 
 
Time commitment during the 
assessment. 

Availability of resource to complete the self-
assessment. 
 
Self-assessment may not accurately represent 
current position. 
 
 

  

Page 125 Agenda Item 12



3 
 

The proposed way forward 

Following discussions with the Chief Officer - Finance & Trading at Sevenoaks District 

Council and the Strategic Director (Internal Services) at Dartford Borough Council, it has 

been agreed that the preferred approach is to commission a self-assessment validation.    

As a new Audit Manager, one of my first priorities is to complete a self-assessment to 

understand where our strengths and areas for development lie. This will inform the EQA to 

ensure value for money. It will also provide opportunities for the whole team to be involved 

in the process as part of their learning and development.   

The procurement specification will however ask for the assessor to provide strategic and 

best practice comments. This will enable us to use the assessment to develop a strategy for 

the partnership and improve our services further.  

What will the self-assessment validation involve?  

The validation of our self-assessment is likely to include the following: 

- A review of key documents and audit file reviews 

- Interviews with key personnel / stakeholders (which can take place remotely). This 

will include the Chair of the Audit Board and Audit Committee but may also include 

other Members 

- A detailed findings report 

- Confirmation of compliance with the Standards with an action plan for improvement  

What happens next? 

In order to progress the EQA process further the following steps need to be completed: 

1. Agree a client sponsor for the EQA 

Sarah Martin – Strategic Director - Internal Services (Dartford) and Adrian Rowbotham -  

Chief Officer - Finance and Trading (Sevenoaks) have agreed to be the client sponsors for 

the EQA. 

2. Agree the authority lead for the procurement exercise 

The procurement exercise will be completed under Dartford Borough Council’s 

procurement arrangements.  Initial discussions have taken place with the Procurement 

Manager to agree the best approach.  

3. Identify potential suppliers to complete the self-assessment validation EQA and 

seek at least 3 quotes 

A number of potential suppliers have already been contacted to request a further 

discussion about commissioning an EQA and obtaining a quote. 

 

 

Page 126Agenda Item 12



4 
 

4. Prepare an EQA specification document 

An EQA specification document is in the process of being prepared.  This will be 

discussed with the Procurement Manager to agree the terms of the specification and the 

assessment criteria in respect of price and quality.   

Once drafted the specification document will be agreed with the Strategic Director 

(Internal Services) at Dartford Borough Council and Chief Officer - Finance & Trading at 

Sevenoaks District Council prior to finalising. 

5. Request quotations from at least 3 suppliers 

Quotations from suppliers will be formally requested once the approach has been 

discussed with Members. 

6. Evaluation of quotations 

All of the quotations received will be assessed against the criteria set out in the 

specification document.  The Chief Officer - Finance & Trading and Strategic Director 

(Internal Services) will participate in the evaluation process. 

7. Appointment of supplier and EQA scope agreed 

Before the EQA is completed the scope of the assessment will need to be agreed with 

the successful supplier.  This will include the documents and files to be reviewed and any 

areas of the Standards requiring more detailed review. 

8. The Audit Manager completes the EQA self-assessment including compilation of 

relevant evidence 

The self-assessment exercise is a large body of work which needs to be completed with 

relevant evidence provided. Whilst this will be led by the Audit Manager, the intention is 

for the whole team to contribute.    

9. EQA self-assessment validation is completed 

The successful supplier completes the EQA assessment including interviews with key 

stakeholders.   

10. Reporting of EQA outcomes 

The outcomes from the EQA will be reported to all key stakeholders as soon as 

practically possible, with the full outcomes report being presented to Audit Board / 

Audit Committee. 

11. Prepare an EQA action Plan  

Following the EQA an action plan will be prepared to address any areas for improvement 

identified.  This action plan will be regularly reviewed and updated and these updates 

will be regularly reported to key stakeholders, including Members. 

 

Page 127 Agenda Item 12



5 
 

Timeline 

It is not currently possible to give a definitive timeline for the EQA as this is dependent on 

supplier availability which will have been impacted by Covid-19. However the broad 

intention is that suppliers will be contacted in July / August 2020 with a view to completing 

the EQA in, or shortly after, November 2020.  

Summary 

This report has provided Members with an overview of the requirements set out by the 

Standards for the Internal Audit function to be externally assessed in the 2020/21 financial 

year. The report has detailed the options available for the assessment to be completed and 

the proposal to commission an independent validation of the self-assessment. 

Page 128Agenda Item 12



 
AUDIT BOARD 

22 July 2020 
 

SELECTIVE INVOICE CHECKS 

 

1. Summary 

 

1.1 Because the April meeting of the Board was cancelled, due to the situation with 
COVID-19, the Audit Board Chair was asked to choose creditor payments for 
checking. This report summarises the findings of the three payments chosen 
and provides the opportunity for Members to select further payments for 
checking.  
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1  That Members note the content of this report and request any further 

explanations as required. 

2.2  That Members select five further payments for checking by Internal Audit. 

 
3. Background and Discussion 
 

3.1. It is a regular feature of the Audit Board’s work for Members to select a 
sample of payments made by the Council for review. Following review 
of these payments, Members receive a report on the findings, and 
consider them as part of each meeting. This is intended to provide 
Members with reasonable assurance that goods and services 
commissioned or procured, for which payments have been made, are in 
compliance with Council procedures. In particular, that they have been 
properly authorised, requisitioned, ordered and received, prior to making 
payment. 

3.2. At the October 2019 meeting the Audit Board agreed a proposal to 
update the method by which payments are selected each month. The 
previous reports were arranged by alphabet, whereas the revised report 
would look back at the last quarter, to ensure that transactions tested 
were current.  

3.3. The following approach was agreed:  

 

Meeting SIC Selection 
Transaction Report 

Parameters 

July (Q1) A B C D E F January - March 

October (Q2) G H I J K L M April - June 

January (Q3) N O P Q R S July - September 

April (Q4) T U V W X Y Z October - December 

 

  

Page 129 Agenda Item 13



 
AUDIT BOARD 

22 July 2020 
 
3.4. The following three payments were selected at random: 

 Bells Power Services Ltd   £474.00 (Gross) 
 B R Stacey Fencing Ltd              £234.00 (Gross) 
 Celebtime         £300.00 (Gross) 

 
4. Summary of Findings 

 
4.1 The results of testing confirm that in all cases, the spend was appropriate 

and in two cases, the spend was also made in compliance with Council 
procedures. In one case however Council procedures had not been 
followed fully.  Detailed summaries of the outcome of each payment are 
set out below. 
 

5. Detailed Findings 
 
5.1 Bells Power Services Ltd (£474.00. gross) – This payment was for the 

second maintenance visit for the emergency generator at the Civic 
Centre.  A purchase order (P021633) was raised, using the Council's e-
Procurement system, for the annual service of the generator which 
comprised of two visits during 2019/20. The first visit took place in July 
2019 and the second in January 2020.  A quotation was obtained in 
advance in accordance with the Council's Contract Standing 
Orders. Testing confirmed that the payment was justified, and made 
promptly. 
 

 
5.2 B R Stacey Fencing Ltd (£234.00 gross) – This payment was for the 

supply of a square steel box to replace a broken bench, in the Swan 
Lane playing field, on Dartford Heath. The bench had been vandalised 
by joyriders and needed to be replaced. A purchase order using the 
Council's e-Procurement system was raised (P022170), after a quotation 
in advance had been obtained.  Testing confirmed that the payment was 
justified, and made promptly. 

 
5.3 Celebtime (£300.00 gross) – This payment was for the supply of a 

celebrity for the Dartford Christmas Market, which took place on 19 
December 2019.  A purchase order had not been raised using the 
Council's e-Procurement system and instead had been arranged via 
email. Email commentary provided confirmed discussions regarding acts 
for other events, but did not confirm the agreed fee for this particular 
transaction. It was also noted that the payment had been charged to the 
incorrect sub-code on the system, which subsequently required 
adjustment. Internal Audit are aware that the Communications, 
Marketing and Commercial Manager's priorities have redirected to 
support the Council’s response to the COVID-19 crisis, and are therefore 
grateful for the information provided. However, appropriate advice has 
been provided with regard to the Council’s procurement process. 
Despite the lack of a purchase order, testing confirmed that the payment 
was justified, and made promptly. 

Page 130Agenda Item 13



 
AUDIT BOARD 

22 July 2020 
 

 
6. Relationship to the Corporate Plan 
 

Not applicable 
 

7. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 
assessments 

 

Financial Implications While there are no financial implications 
associated with the outcomes detailed in the 
report, compliance with agreed financial 
procedures helps to ensure that the Council 
maintains a sound system of financial control 
and governance.  

Legal Implications None 

Staffing Implications None 

Administrative Implications None 

Risk Assessment Obtaining goods and services on behalf of the 
Council carries potential inherent risks of fraud, 
or misappropriation. The Selective Invoice 
Checks’ process is one of many steps 
employed by the Council to manage fraud risks 
and to ensure value for money. 

  
8. Details of Exempt Information Category 
 

Not applicable 
 
9. Appendices 
 

None 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 

Documents 
consulted 

Date Report Author 
Section & 

Directorate 

Exempt 
Information 
Category 

None 29/06/20 
 

Audit Manager 
01322 343116 

Internal Audit Partnership 
& Strategic Director 
(Internal Services) 

N/A 

 

Page 131 Agenda Item 13



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 132



                              

AUDIT BOARD 
22 APRIL 2020 

 

1 
PMKS/Audit Board/IHRA and Member Code of Conduct 

MEMBER CODE OF CONDUCT & ADOPTION OF THE INTERNATIONAL 
HOLOCAUST REMEMBRANCE ALLIANCE DEFINITION OF ANTI-SEMITISM 

 

 
1. Summary 

 

1.1 To consider an amendment to the Member Code of Conduct, to incorporate 
provisions of tolerance, inter-faith understanding and equality. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1 That the Board endorses the proposed amendment to the Member Code of 

Conduct, to apply the International Holocaust Remembrance Alliance definition of 
anti-Semitism, in the broader context of respect, tolerance, inter-faith 
understanding and equality, as set out in para. 3.6 of the report and to recommend 
accordingly to the General Assembly of the Council. 

 

 
3. Background and Discussion 
 
3.1 On 26 May 2016, the Plenary of the International Holocaust Remembrance 

Alliance (IHRA) adopted a non-legally binding working definition of anti-Semitism: 

‘Antisemitism is a certain perception of Jews, which may be expressed as hatred 
toward Jews. Rhetorical and physical manifestations of antisemitism are directed 
toward Jewish or non-Jewish individuals and/or their property, toward Jewish 
community institutions and religious facilities.’ 

 
3.2 On 13 January 2020 [Min.No. 74], the General Assembly of the Council adopted 

the IHRA definition and recommended that consideration be given to applying the 
IHRA definition of anti-Semitism in the Member Code of Conduct, in the broader 
context of respect, tolerance, inter-faith understanding and equality. 

3.3 Crimes motivated by intolerance towards certain groups in society are described 
as ‘hate crimes’. In a ‘hate crime’, the perpetrator does not necessarily ‘hate’ the 
victim; instead, the attack is usually aimed at the group the victim represents or is 
perceived to be representing. For this reason, hate crimes are described as 
‘message crimes’, that is, criminal offences that are not only intended for the victim 
but also to send a message to the victim’s community. People may express 
attitudes through prejudice and hostility toward targeted groups, whereas 
incidents involve personal attacks. 

3.4 The broader context of respect, tolerance, inter-faith understanding and 
equality 

(a) ‘Inter-faith’ is the interaction between people of different religions or faith 
traditions. The following principles should serve to foster understanding and 
tolerance of different religions or faith traditions: 

Page 133 Agenda Item 14



                              

AUDIT BOARD 
22 APRIL 2020 

 

2 
PMKS/Audit Board/IHRA and Member Code of Conduct 

 to respect  people’s freedom within the law to express their beliefs, values 
and convictions 

 to respect the convictions of others about food, dress and social etiquette 
and not behave in ways which cause offence 

 not to misrepresent or disparage other people’s beliefs and practices 
 
(b)  ‘Equality' is about ensuring that every individual has an equal opportunity to make 

the most of their lives and talents.  It is also the belief that no one should have 
poorer life chances because of the way they were born, where they come from, 
what they believe, or whether they have a disability. Equality recognises that 
historically, certain groups of people with protected characteristics such as race, 
disability, sex and sexual orientation have experienced discrimination. 

 
The ideal of equality of opportunity is built into the Council’s Equality and Diversity 
Document Framework which declares: 

 
‘The Council recognises that all its roles and functions will have an impact on 
different groups and individuals in different ways depending upon their 
backgrounds, cultures, lifestyles and experiences. This policy demonstrates the 
Council’s commitment to ensuring that everyone in Dartford can take a full part in 
the social, cultural and economic life of the Borough’. 

3.5 Numerous instances of ‘hate crime’ behaviour and intolerance towards certain 
groups in society by councillors across the country, have been reported in the 
press and in digital feeds, resulting in their suspension, by their political parties, 
pending an investigation. Local authorities’ standards committees have also been 
involved in dealing with such behaviour, as a breach of their member codes of 
conduct. 

3.6 Having considered the commentary in paragraphs 3.3 to 3.5 above, the Board is 
requested to endorse the amendment to the Member Code of Conduct, to apply 
the International Holocaust Remembrance Alliance definition of anti-Semitism, in 
the broader context of respect, tolerance, inter-faith understanding and equality, 
as set out below and to recommend accordingly to the General Assembly of the 
Council: 

 ‘You will promote tolerance and inter-faith understanding by: 
 

 showing respect for other people’s freedom within the law to express their 
beliefs, values and convictions; 

 respecting the convictions of others about food, dress and social etiquette 
and not behaving in ways which cause offence; 

 not misrepresenting or disparaging other people’s beliefs and practices.’ 
 
‘You will not engage in conduct which might reasonably be seen to demonstrate 
hostility or prejudice based on age, disability, gender reassignment or identity, 
marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, 
sex or sexual orientation, which will include but not be limited to incidents involving 
racism, anti-Semitism, Islamophobia or otherwise racist language, sentiments, 
stereotypes or actions, sexual harassment, bullying or any form of intimidation 
towards another person on the basis of a protected characteristic.’ 

Page 134Agenda Item 14

https://www.dartford.gov.uk/__data/assets/pdf_file/0013/10264/Equality-and-Diversity-Document-Framework-2018-22-v5-Final.pdf
https://www.dartford.gov.uk/__data/assets/pdf_file/0013/10264/Equality-and-Diversity-Document-Framework-2018-22-v5-Final.pdf


                              

AUDIT BOARD 
22 APRIL 2020 

 

3 
PMKS/Audit Board/IHRA and Member Code of Conduct 

 

4. Relationship to the Corporate Plan 
 
Strategic Objective SC3 of the Corporate Plan seeks to increase public perception 

of the Borough as a safe place.  

 
5. Financial, legal, staffing and other implications and risk assessments 
 

Financial Implications None 

Legal Implications 

  

The definition is non-legally binding.    

 

Public Sector Equality 
Duty 

Crime and Disorder duty 

The Council has a duty to eliminate unlawful 
discrimination, harassment and victimisation. 
Incorporation of the IHRA definition in the Member 
Code of Conduct supports both this duty and the 
Council’s duty under Section 17 of the Crime and 
Disorder Act 1998 by demonstrating the Council’s 
determination to challenge anti-Semitism and hate 
crime in all its forms. 

Staffing Implications None 

Administrative Implications None  

Risk Assessment No uncertainties and/or constraints 

 
  
6. Details of Exempt Information Category 
 
 Not applicable. 
  

7. Appendices 
 

DBC Code of Conduct 
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Documents consulted Date / 
File Ref 

Report Author Section and 
Directorate 

Exempt 
Information 
Category 

 
  Marie Kelly-Stone 

(01322) 343643 
Legal 
Services/ 
Strategic 
Directorate 
(Internal 
Services) 

N/A 

 

Page 135 Agenda Item 14



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 136



THE DARTFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL CODE OF CONDUCT  
(adopted on 16 December 2013 - under section 27(2) of the Localism Act 2011) 

Legal/DBC Code of Conduct/ 

 
You are a member or co-opted member of Dartford Borough Council and hence you shall have 
regard to the following principles – selflessness, integrity, objectivity, accountability, openness, 
honesty and leadership. The principles were first established by the Nolan Committee and are 
detailed in the guidelines for members.  
 
Accordingly, when acting in your capacity as a member or co-opted member of Dartford Borough 
Council -  
 
You must act solely in the public interest and should never improperly confer an advantage or 
disadvantage on any person or act to gain financial or other material benefits for yourself, your 
family, a friend or close associate. 
 
You must not place yourself under a financial or other obligation to outside individuals or 
organisations that might seek to inappropriately influence you in the performance of your official 
duties.  You should have regard to the guidance in the Council’s on Gifts, Benefits and Hospitality 
Protocol. 
 
Failure to declare a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest may be a criminal offence and you should also 
declare any Prejudicial Interest that relates to your public duties and must take steps to resolve any 
conflicts arising in a way that protects the public interest. You should register and declare your 
interests in a manner conforming to the procedures set out by the Council, including Standing 
Order 19. 
 
When carrying out your public duties, you must make all choices, such as making public 
appointments, awarding contracts or recommending individuals for rewards or benefits, on merit 
without discrimination or bias.  You will find guidance in the Council’s Anti-Fraud and Corruption 
Policy. 
 
You are accountable for your decisions to the public and you must co-operate fully with whatever 
scrutiny is appropriate to your office. 
 
You must be as open as possible about your decisions and actions and the decisions and actions 
of the Council and should be prepared to give reasons for those decisions and actions.  
Information should not be withheld from the public unless there are clear and lawful reasons for 
doing so.  You should have regard to the guidance in the Council’s Protocol on the Release of 
Confidential Information.  
 
You must, when using or authorising the use by others of the resources of the Council, ensure that 
such resources are not used improperly for political purposes (including party political purposes) 
and you must have regard to any applicable Local Authority Code of Publicity made under the 
Local Government Act 1986 and guidance in the Council’s Protocol on the Use of Council Facilities 
and Resources by Councillors. 
 
You should be truthful. 
 
You must promote and support high standards of conduct when serving in your public post, in 
particular as characterised by the above requirements, by leadership and example.  You should 
have regard to the Council’s guidance in the Council’s Member/Officer Relations’ Protocol on the 
conduct between officers and members and the conduct when serving on outside bodies.   
 
You will not engage in conduct which might reasonably be seen to demonstrate hostility or 
prejudice based on age, disability, gender reassignment or identity, marriage and civil partnership, 
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex or sexual orientation, which shall include but 
not be limited to incidents involving racism, anti-Semitism, Islamophobia or otherwise racist 
language, sentiments, stereotypes or actions, sexual harassment, bullying or any form of 
intimidation towards another person on the basis of a protected characteristic. 
 

Page 137 Agenda Item 14



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 138


	Agenda
	3 Confirmation of the Minutes of the meeting held on 21 January 2020
	6 Report from External Auditor
	Item 6 Appendix A DBC Audit Plan 2019-20 FINAL 06.07.2020.Audit Board

	7 Fraud Compliance Team Annual Report 2019-20
	8 Annual Governance Statement (AGS) 2019/20
	Item 8 Appendix A Annual Governance Statement - 2019-20
	Item 8 App. B AGS Action Plan
	Item 8 App. C - ACTION PLAN REVIEW

	9 Internal Audit Annual Opinion 2019-20
	Item 9 Appendix FINAL 2019-20 Annual Audit Opinion Report

	10 Internal Audit Plan 2020-21
	Item 10 Appendix A - FINAL Internal Audit Plan 2020-21

	11 Internal Audit Charter
	Item 11 Appendix A FINAL Internal Audit Charter 2020

	12 Internal Audit External Quality Assessment
	Item 12 Appendix A FINAL External Quality Assessment Procurement Report

	13 Selective Invoice Checks
	14 Member Code of Conduct: Adoption of the International Holocaust Remembrance Alliance Definition of Anti-Semitism
	Appendix A Member Code of Conduct 2020


